
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

LB/COUNCIL/AG 

Please ask for: Lorraine Bush, Democratic Services Manager 
 
12 November 2021 
 
TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL - 22 NOVEMBER 2021 
 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Council on 
Monday, 22nd November, 2021 at 6.30 pm 

in the Jakemans Community Stadium, Pilgrims Way, Wyberton, Boston PE21 7NE 
 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - Preliminaries 
 

 
A. To sign the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 27 September 2021 

attached at pages 1 – 10.  PAGE 9 CONTAINS EXEMPT INFORMATION   
 

B. To receive apologies for absence. 
 
C. To receive communications (if any) from the Mayor and the Chief Executive. 
 
D. To receive deputations or petitions (if any) pursuant to Rules 12 and 13 of the 

Council’s Rules of Procedure. 
 

E. To answer questions (if any) from elected members pursuant to Rule 11 of the 
Council’s Rules of Procedure. 

 
F. To answer questions (if any) from members of the public pursuant to Rule 10 

of the Council’s Rules of Procedure.  
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
G. To receive declarations by Members of any interests in respect of items on 

the agenda. 
 
 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES (Pages 11 - 28) 
 

 (To receive the confirmed minutes of the meetings of the Audit and Governance 
Committee held on 24 May and 20 September 2021) 
 

2   JOINT BBC/ELDC SCRUTINY OF THE STRATEGIC ALLIANCE (Pages 29 - 50) 
 

 (Report by the Scrutiny Officer)  
 

3   BOSTON CITY STATUS APPLICATION (Pages 51 - 56) 
 

 (Report by the Assistant Director – Economic Growth) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Richard Austin  
 

4   SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP  
(Pages 57 - 148) 
 

 (Report by the Joint Strategic Advisor) 
APPENDIX D CONTAINS EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Paul Skinner  
 

 
 
 
 

 
Questions from Members of the Council and the public must be received by 5 p.m. two 
clear working days prior to the day of the meeting – the deadline for this meeting is  
5 p.m. on Wednesday, 17th November 2021. 
 

 
 
Alternative Versions - Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format 
such as larger text, Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on 
direct dial (01205) 314227 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Lorraine Bush, 
Democratic Services Manager, Municipal Buildings, Boston Telephone 01205 314224  e-mail 
lorraine.bush@boston.gov.uk 



BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
At the Meeting of Boston Borough Council held at the Jakemans Community Stadium, 
Pilgrim Way, Wyberton, Boston, on Monday, 27th September, 2021 at 6.30 pm 
 
Present: 
The Mayor (Councillor Frank Pickett), in the Chair 
Councillors Tracey Abbott, Tom Ashton, Alison Austin, Richard Austin BEM, 
Peter Bedford, David Brown, Katie Chalmers, Michael Cooper, Anton Dani, 
Deborah Evans, Paul Goodale, Martin Griggs, Jonathan Noble, Brian Rush, 
Judith Skinner, Paul Skinner, Aaron Spencer, Chelcei Trafford, Peter Watson, 
Judith Welbourn, Nigel Welton and Stephen Woodliffe 
 
Officers –  
Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer, Democratic Services Delivery 
Manager, Civic and Member Services Officer and Democratic Services Apprentice 
 
  
15  MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the meetings of the Council held on 15 February, 1 March, 26 May,  
28 June and 2 August were taken as read and signed by the Mayor as a correct record.  
 
16  APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Alan Bell, George Cornah,  
Viven Edge, Neill Hastie, Martin Howard, and Yvonne Stevens. 
 
17 COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no communications reported.  
 
18 DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS 
 
The Chief Executive reported there were no deputations or petitions. 
 
19 QUESTIONS FROM ELECTED MEMBERS 
 
The Chief Executive reported there was a question from Councillor Brian Rush. 
 
Question asked by Councillor Brian Rush pursuant to paragraph 11 of the Rules 
of Procedure as set out in the Constitution.  
 
“Councillor Abbott on the 15th of February, I asked a question of you regarding the 
whereabouts of a consignment of 25 pop up stalls, which I believe an Officer of this 
Administration was instructed to purchase, for use on Bargate Green.  It is rumoured 
that these may have been loaned out for a Charitable Dragon Boat Race, and were not 
returned in good condition.  
 
Forgive me if I have misunderstood your answer, but you directed me to, what you 
describe, as an answer I gave to a similar question, which you say, was asked at the 

Page 1

Agenda Item A.



last meeting of council.  You also say this answer is clearly set out in the minutes of that 
meeting as part of this agenda.   
 
For the avoidance of doubt, can I ask that you name the pages within the relative 
documents, were I might find these pages? However on page 5 of this Paper I 
presented you with a great deal of information and you promised, to look into this 
operational and assured me that you would see what could be done. 
 
Do you agree that this Council, cannot afford to allow Boston’s public money to be left 
unaccounted for, even for Charities Events such as this?”  
 
Response by Councillor Tracey Abbott 
 
“Thank you for your question. The previous question and response were set out in the 
minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 23 November 2020, and included in the 
agenda for the 15 February meeting, pages 2 and 3 which are also available on the 
Council’s website.  I would also refer you to my offer of a meeting with me, to which I 
have not received a response.” 
 
Supplemental question asked by Councillor Brian Rush pursuant to paragraph 
11.6 of the Rules of Procedure as set out in the Constitution:- 
 
“You have asked to meet, but the current pandemic situation we find ourselves in has 
prevented this, however I appreciate what you have said and done.  
 
Could you please confirm that you have asked Councillor Richard Austin about events 
that were held during his time as Leader of the Council as you have been unable to 
enlighten me.” 
 
Response by Councillor Abbott: 
 
“I continue to look into this and ask again that you meet with me either virtually or 
physically, with covid-19 precautions in place.”  
 
20 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 
The Chief Executive reported there was a question from Mr. Darron Abbott. 
 
Question asked by Mr. Darron Abbott pursuant to paragraph 10 of the Rules of 
Procedure as set out in the Constitution:- 
 
“Councillor Noble as you are aware I have already emailed you about this matter but 
have yet to receive a reply. 
 
At the Cabinet meeting on the 8th September you announced that Boston Borough 
Council had received an unexpected Grant of £30,000 to be used for community 
projects, you also mentioned that this money would be handed over to Transported for 
them to use as they see fit. 
 
You are also aware that a Local Community Group are endeavouring to arrange an 
event in the Market Place on Sunday June 5th to celebrate her Majesty the Queens 

Page 2



 
 

 
 

Platinum Jubilee and the granting of City Status to Boston. Please could I ask if some of 
this unexpected grant could be donated to the Community Group to help with the cost of 
the event.  
 
I can guarantee the group will report directly back to you on a regular basis as to how 
these funds are being spent and would be more than happy to supply a full copy of the 
Accounts once the event has been completed.” 
 
Response by Councillor Jonathan Noble 
 
“I’m very pleased to hear of your excitement for this celebration. Should the Council 
open any community based funding schemes, between now and the date of your event, 
then I’d be delighted to see your group submit a full business case and apply for 
funding.” 
 
Supplemental question asked by Mr. Abbott pursuant to paragraph 10.8 of the 
Rules of Procedure as set out in the Constitution:- 
 
“As you have not answered my question I will give you the opportunity to do so again.  I 
apologise if my supplementary question does not arise from your answer to my question 
but at this point I am unaware of your answer. 
 
You mention that you would require a copy of our business plan, you have already been 
supplied a copy of this in hope that the Council would be gracious enough to hand over 
part of the £30,000.  
 
Would you be so kind as to supply us with copies of the business plans supplied by 
Transported regarding how they will use this funding and also the one from the recent 
funding given to another community group recently or would you advise a Freedom of 
information request to gain this information. Your answers are now demonstrating 
discrimination against me. 
 
I now hand back to you to answer both my original question and the supplementary 
one.” 
 
Mr. Abbott left the meeting before Councillor Noble could respond to the supplementary 
question. 
 
21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Peter Watson declared an interest in the report relating to Inquorate Parish 
Council as a serving member of Kirton Parish Council and would abstain from the vote 
on that item. 
 
22 AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 
It was moved by Councillor Peter Watson, seconded by Councillor Tom Ashton 
and  
 
 
 

Page 3



 
RESOLVED that the confirmed minutes of the meetings of the Audit and 
Governance Committee held on 25 January and 29 March 2021 be received. 
 

 
 
23 SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP – 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEES AND OTHER CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS  
 
The Monitoring Officer introduced a report setting out proposed amendments to the 
Constitution as a result of the Council’s previous decision to form a strategic alliance 
with South Holland District Council and East Lindsey District Council. 
 
The report stated that at the meeting of the Council on 2 August 2021, the business 
case for entry into the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership was approved.  
As a result a number of initial constitutional changes were required to fully implement 
that decision.  
 
The constitution changes proposed, together with the reasons for the proposed changes 
were set out in the report relating specifically to the Chief Officer Employment Panel and 
associated procedures; officer delegations and officer and member indemnities.  
 
Full details of the procedures and terms of reference for the Chief Officer Employment 
Panel, the Chief Officer Employment Appeals Panel, and the Independent Panel were 
set out in the appendices to the report, together with provision for indemnities.  
 
It was moved by Councillor Paul Skinner and seconded by Councillor Nigel 
Welton that  
 
1. That the Joint Chief Officer Employment Panel be renamed the Chief Officer 

Employment Panel, the terms of reference be changed to those set out in section 
one of Appendix A to this report, the size of the Panel be set at three members and 
the membership be approved in accordance with paragraph 1.2.4 of this report; 
 

2. That the Joint Appointment Appeals Committee be renamed the Chief Officer 
Employment Appeals Panel, the terms of reference be changed to those set out in 
section two of Appendix A to this report, the size of the Panel be set at three 
members and the membership be approved in accordance with paragraph 1.2.4 of 
this report; 
 

3. That an Independent Panel be established as a standing committee of the Council, 
with the terms of reference set out in section three of Appendix A, and its 
membership be the Independent Person of this Council appointed under section 27 
of the Localism Act 2011 together with the Independent Person appointed by South 
Holland District Council and East Lindsey District Council under the same statutory 
provision; 
 

4. That, in respect of any complaint against a Chief Officer or Deputy Chief Officer 
which may potentially lead to any action for misconduct, capability, grievance or for 
some other substantial reason, each statutory officer be authorised to act as an initial 
‘filter’ to determine whether such complaint should progress to the Chief Officer 

Page 4



 
 

 
 

Employment Panel or instead be determined through another process, except in any 
matter that relates to their own conduct;  

 
5. That the Council’s Democratic Services Team, working with the Councillor 

Development Group, ensure that members (and Independent Persons) serving on 
the Chief Officer Employment Panel, Chief Officer Employment Appeals Panel and 
Independent Panel receive suitable training; 
 

6. That all Officers employed by South Holland District Council, East Lindsey District 
Council or Boston Borough Council, who are shared pursuant to the s113 Agreement 
between those councils, be granted or re-granted delegated authority to act as 
officers of Boston Borough Council in accordance with the Constitution and the 
schedule of specific delegations and the Monitoring Officer be authorised to make 
such amendments to post titles and areas of responsibility set out in those 
documents as the Monitoring Officer considers appropriate; 

 
7. That the Head of Paid Service be granted delegated authority, in consultation with 

the Leader of the Council, to place staff of this authority at the disposal of South 
Holland District Council and/or East Lindsey District Council or to agree the placing 
of staff of those authorities at the disposal of this authority;  

 
8. That, subject to consultation with the Council’s Insurers, an indemnity be provided to 

officers and members in accordance with (or materially in accordance with) Appendix 
B to this report; and 

 
9. That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to amend the Constitution accordingly to 

reflect any of the matters referred to in recommendations 1-8 above. 
 
An amendment was moved by Councillor Anton Dani and seconded by Councillor 
Michael Cooper that 
 
Recommendation 9 be amended to read ‘That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to 
amend the Constitution accordingly to reflect any of the matters referred to in 
recommendations 1-8 above, in consultation with the Chief Executive and Leader of the 
Council.’ 
 
The Monitoring Officer explained to Council that the proposed amendments to the 
Constitution were required to reflect the decisions being made in recommendations 1 to 
8, not any additional changes.  
 
On being put to the vote the amendment was lost.  
 
The substantive motion was then put to the vote and it was  
 

 
RESOLVED  
 
1. That the Joint Chief Officer Employment Panel be renamed the Chief Officer 

Employment Panel, the terms of reference be changed to those set out in 
section one of Appendix A to this report, the size of the Panel be set at 
three members and the membership be approved in accordance with 

Page 5



paragraph 1.2.4 of this report; 
 

2. That the Joint Appointment Appeals Committee be renamed the Chief 
Officer Employment Appeals Panel, the terms of reference be changed to 
those set out in section two of Appendix A to this report, the size of the 
Panel be set at three members and the membership be approved in 
accordance with paragraph 1.2.4 of this report; 
 

3. That an Independent Panel be established as a standing committee of the 
Council, with the terms of reference set out in section three of Appendix A, 
and its membership be the Independent Person of this Council appointed 
under section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 together with the Independent 
Person appointed by South Holland District Council and East Lindsey 
District Council under the same statutory provision; 

 
4. That, in respect of any complaint against a Chief Officer or Deputy Chief 

Officer which may potentially lead to any action for misconduct, capability, 
grievance or for some other substantial reason, each statutory officer be 
authorised to act as an initial ‘filter’ to determine whether such complaint 
should progress to the Chief Officer Employment Panel or instead be 
determined through another process, except in any matter that relates to 
their own conduct;  

 
5. That the Council’s Democratic Services Team, working with the Councillor 

Development Group, ensure that members (and Independent Persons) 
serving on the Chief Officer Employment Panel, Chief Officer Employment 
Appeals Panel and Independent Panel receive suitable training; 

 
6. That all Officers employed by South Holland District Council, East Lindsey 

District Council or Boston Borough Council, who are shared pursuant to 
the s113 Agreement between those councils, be granted or re-granted 
delegated authority to act as officers of Boston Borough Council in 
accordance with the Constitution and the schedule of specific delegations 
and the Monitoring Officer be authorised to make such amendments to post 
titles and areas of responsibility set out in those documents as the 
Monitoring Officer considers appropriate; 
 

7. That the Head of Paid Service be granted delegated authority, in 
consultation with the Leader of the Council, to place staff of this authority 
at the disposal of South Holland District Council and/or East Lindsey 
District Council or to agree the placing of staff of those authorities at the 
disposal of this authority;  

 
8. That, subject to consultation with the Council’s Insurers, an indemnity be 

provided to officers and members in accordance with (or materially in 
accordance with) Appendix B to this report; and 

 
9. That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to amend the Constitution 

accordingly to reflect any of the matters referred to in recommendations 1-8 
above. 

 

Page 6



 
 

 
 

 
24 INQUORATE PARISH COUNCIL 
 
The Leader of the Council introduced a report by the Democratic Services Delivery 
Manager seeking authority to make an Order under Section 91 of the Local Government 
act 1972, to appoint named persons to be Parish Councillors on an interim basis and to 
consider granting delegated authority to the Returning Officer, in consultation with local 
ward member(s) and Parish Clerk, to make such orders in the future should the need 
arise.  
 
The report stated that on 4th August 2021 six of the current nine members of Kirton 
Parish Council tendered their resignations thereby rendering the Council inquorate and 
unable to carry out its normal business. 
 
Section 91 of the Local Government Act 1972 gave principal councils the power to make 
temporary appointments to fill any or all of the vacancies until sufficient parish 
councillors were elected. 
 
The quorum for Kirton Parish Council was for members, therefore at least one person 
would need to be appointed as a parish councillor on an interim basis and attend all 
meetings in order to conduct the required business. 
 
The two Borough Councillors and two County Councillors for the Kirton Parish area had 
been approached and all agreed to act on a temporary basis until the parish council was 
once again quorate.  It was recommended that all four Councillors be appointed to 
mitigate against non-attendance or conflict of interests which may render a meeting 
inquorate.  A copy of the draft Section 91 Order to appoint persons to Kirton Parish 
Council was set out in Appendix A. 
 
To ensure temporary appointments could be made to inquorate parish councils as 
quickly as possible in the future, it was recommended that the Returning Officer be 
granted delegated authority to appoint persons to inquorate parish councils, in 
consultation with the appropriate ward member(s) and Parish Clerk, in accordance with 
the procedure set out in Appendix B. 
 
In response to comments from Members, the Monitoring Officer stated that the meeting 
was not the appropriate forum to discuss the history of the situation with Kirton Parish 
Council. The appointments would be short term as the Parish Council could co-opt new 
Members once quorate if an election was not held.  
 
It was moved by Councillor Paul Skinner, seconded by Councillor Anton Dani and  
 

 
RESOLVED  
 
1. That the Order attached at Appendix A, to appoint temporary parish 

Councillors to Kirton Parish Council, be approved so that the Council was 

quorate and could continue to operate. 

2. That delegated authority be granted to the Returning Officer, in consultation 

with Borough Ward Member(s) for the parish affected and the Parish Clerk, 

Page 7



to make such orders under Section 91 of the Local Government Act 1972, 

should a similar situation arise in the future in respect of any parish council 

in the Borough area, following the procedure set out in Appendix B. 

 
25 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  
 
It was moved by Councillor Paul Skinner, seconded by Councillor Nigel Welton 
and  
 

 
RESOLVED that the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006.  
 

 
26 HONORARY FREEDOM OF THE BOROUGH 
 
This minute contains exempt information and has been lodged separately by the 
Council.  
 

(The meeting ended at 7.25 p.m.) 

Page 8



Document is Restricted

Page 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

FULL COUNCIL 
 

22nd November 2021 
 
 

 
To receive the confirmed minutes  

of the meetings of the  
Audit and Governance Committee held on  

24th May and 20th September 2021. 
 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 1



Page 12



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

24 May 2021 

Present: Councillor Tom Ashton (Chairman), Councillor George Cornah (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Alison Austin, Anton Dani and Mr Alan Pickering 
 
In attendance: Councillor Jonathan Noble, Portfolio Holder for Finance 
 
Officers –  
Section 151 Officer, Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate Services, Head of 
Internal Audit (City of Lincoln Council), Principal Auditor (City of Lincoln Council), 
Manager – Public Sector, Mazars, Senior Technical Services Engineer (PSPS), Head of 
ICT & Digital, PSPS and Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
75   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the last meeting, held on 29th March 2021, were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
76   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillors Richard Austin and Peter Watson.  It 
was noted that Councillor Anne Dorrian was no longer a Member of the Committee.  
 
77   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
78   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
79   AUDIT COMPLETION REPORT FOLLOW-UP LETTER 

 
Mark Surridge presented Mazars’ follow-up letter, which set out the conclusion of those 
matters marked as outstanding within the Audit Completion Report dated 16 October 
2020. 
 
Mr Surridge explained that it had been a considerable length of time since Mazars’ last 
report to the Committee because of the significant efforts made by officers to provide 
evidence regarding the Council’s ‘State Street’ loan.  The evidence had not been 
forthcoming and officers had ceased payment of the interest on the loan in order to 
obtain the usual letter of confirmation provided for loans.  Mazars had decided that it 
was appropriate to draw a line under the situation, though this resulted in the unusual 
situation of the Council having received a modified opinion.   
 
The remainder of the letter covered the conclusion as well as confirmation that all 
other matters for 2019/20 were clear, including the Council 's arrangements for value 
for money.  In context, the 2019/20 value for money conclusions included an 
increased number of qualified conclusions highlighting significant weaknesses and 
arrangements across the country; therefore, the Council receiving an unqualified 
opinion was a positive result. 

Page 13



Audit & Governance Committee 
24 May 2021 
 

 
In response to questions regarding withholding interest payments on the ‘State 
Street’ loan, the Section 151 Officer advised Members that interest payments would 
continue to be withheld until the company provided the necessary statement 
required.  Provision had been made for the payment, which would be paid if the 
statement was provided.  Should a position be reached in the long-term where 
payment had not been pursued, the money would be considered as surplus funds to 
the Council. 
 
It was noted that previous officers and Chairmen had researched the details of the 
loan in vain, though some paperwork had been produced.   
 

Action: Councillor Dani 
Pass paperwork relating to the Council’s loan originally taken out with Sta te Street to 
the Section 151 Officer. 

 
The Chairman thanked Mazars for their work, welcoming the conclusion that the 
Council had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year and the certificate confirming the 
Council had been given a clean bill of health. 
 
80   ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 

 
Mr Surridge presented the Annual Audit Letter, which summarised the work Mazars had 
undertaken as the auditor for the Council for the year ended 31 March 2020.  
 
The letter was designed to be read by a wider audience including members of the public 
and other external stakeholders. 
 
The auditor’s report, issued on 12 May 2021, included Mazars’ opinion, 
except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section, that the financial statements: 

 gave a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position as at 31 March 2020 and 
of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 

 had been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2019/20. 

 
Mazars’ opinion was that the other information in the Statement of Accounts was 
consistent with the audited financial statements.   
 
The report concluded that Mazars were satisfied that in all significant respects, the 
Council had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2020. 
 
A Member expressed gratitude for Mazars work in the difficult circumstances resulting 
from the pandemic and for the Council’s satisfactory financial situation, which compared 
favourably with some other authorities. 
 
 
 

Page 14



Audit & Governance Committee 
24 May 2021 

 

81   INTERNAL AUDIT - PROGRESS REPORT 2021/22 
 

John Scott reported on progress with the work undertaken by Internal Audit in 2021/22. 
 
As at 31st March, 97% of the revised 2020/21 Audit Plan had been completed. In this 
period, five assurance reviews had been completed and had received the following 
assurance ratings: 
 
• Council Tax – Substantial 
• IT Assurance Map update – Limited 
• Housing Benefit & Council Tax Support – Substantial 
• Accountancy Key Controls – High 
• Payroll – Substantial 
 
Two further audits were at the draft stage: Governance and Risk Management & 
Counter Fraud. 

 
The IT Assurance Map update, a review against IT security best practice conducted by 
Internal Audit’s ICT auditor, had made 4 High priority and 9 Medium priority 
recommendations.  There were still further actions to be completed, particularly around 
the development of IT security policy and procedures.   
 
The IT team at Boston had joined with PSPS and, over time, would adopt their IT 
governance arrangements.  PSPS and its team would address and monitor the agreed 
actions, and provide updates to management through the Assistant Director – 
Organisation and Corporate Services, who oversaw the PSPS ICT Service Level 
Agreement, and the Audit and Governance Committee during 2021-22 as part of their 
implementation plan. 
 
The report highlighted the control areas that needed improvement.  However, it was 
found that many areas were operating in accordance with good practice.  Further details 
were contained in Appendix 1. 
 
An update giving the position of all recommendations as at 31st March was attached at 
Appendix 3.  The 2021/22 Audit Plan, which would start May, was shown in Appendix 4. 
 
In response to questions, it was explained that ISO 2701 stood for International 
Standard for Information Security. 
 
A Member queried whether the Council had not taken action where needed with respect 
to IT because it was moving over to PSPS.   
 
Mr Scott confirmed there had been some delay in completing some previous actions and 
some remained outstanding.  However, it was hoped that the transition to PSPS and the 
capacity available within PSPS would ensure that those areas were addressed quickly.  
This would be monitored and regular updates would be reported to the Committee, as 
requested by the Chairman.   
 

Page 15



Audit & Governance Committee 
24 May 2021 
 

A Member was concerned the transition couldleave the Council open to risk of cyber 
hacking etc. and felt it would be essential to keep the Committee up to date on a regular 
and timely basis. 
 
The Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate Services recognised the number of 
outstanding recommendations from the audit and assured the Committee that the move 
to PSPS would provide the ICT service with much greater capacity and expressed 
confident that the service was addressing them in as short a timescale as possible. 
 
The Chairman commended the move to PSPS and felt reassured that many issues with 
be resolved and that the Committee would receive regular updates on progress. 
 
Other Members agreed.  It was remarked that although some should perhaps have been 
resolved sooner, this was certainly not a criticism of the Council’s IT staff, who were an 
excellent team, but did not have the capacity to deal with all the current demands, 
particularly security.   
 
In response to a question about ensuring council tax payments were up to date as EU 
nationals left the country as a result of Brexit, the Section 151 Officer explained that 
council tax was a tax on the property, not the individual, which minimized the risk to 
some extent.  There were processes in place to make sure that people paid their council 
tax up the time of leaving.  It was not anticipated that a large number would leave at the 
end of June.  However, the comments would be fed back to the manager for her view. 
 

Action: AS 
Contact the Housing Benefit and Council Tax Manager for her view on the effect of the 
resettlement of EU nationals on arrears of council tax. 

 
The report was noted and the progress reported was commended. 
 
82   RISK REPORT QUARTER 3 2020/21 

 
The Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate Services presented a report, which 
set out an update on risks as at the end of Quarter 3 of 2020/2021 (April to December 
2020) to provide assurance to the Committee that corporate governance arrangements 
were in place and functioning effectively. 
 
The corporate management team reviewed strategic risks in Quarter 1, particularly with 
regard to the impact of Covid-19 and the Strategic Alliance with East Lindsey District 
Council, and in Quarter 2, in light of the change in management structure.  They would 
be reviewed again in the light of the new Corporate Plan in Quarter 4.  
 
The report summarised the strategic risks with full details set out in Appendix A.  The 
two high strategic risks remained as Housing and Budget. There had been no change to 
the strategic risk scores in Quarter 3. 
 
For 2021/22, the IT & Transformation Manager would be working towards having a 
single risk management approach across the Alliance, with strategic and operational 
risks reviewed as part of service planning. 
 

Page 16



Audit & Governance Committee 
24 May 2021 

 

Management of strategic and operational risks continued in accordance with the Risk 
Management Framework. 
 
It was remarked that running a single approach across the alliance appeared a sensible 
way forward and would present another opportunity to retain the areas of best practice 
from both authorities 
 

Action: SR 
Advise Members whether potential changes to planning legislation would have a positive 
or negative effect on the Housing risk. 

  
The report was noted. 
 
83   INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 

 
John Scott presented the Internal Audit Annual Report for the Council for 2020/21. 
 
The report presented a summary of the audit work undertaken over the past year.  In 
particular, it included an opinion on the overall adequacy of and effectiveness of the 
governance framework and internal control system and the extent to which the Council 
relied on it; and information on how the plan had been discharged and the overall 
outcomes of the work undertaken.   
 
The internal audit plan had been reduced by 25% due to the impact of COVID and the 
new Strategic Alliance and this reduction had been agreed with the Section 151 Officer. 
 
From the work undertaken, Internal Audit found that, despite the significant pressures 
caused by Covid and the new Alliance, governance risk and control had not been 
significantly affected.  Internal Audit had not been asked to provide any direct (non-
audit) support relating to Covid. There were some access issues, but generally, across 
the whole plan, this was not significant. 
 
Despite the reduction in the audit plan and other factors impacting the 
Council Internal Audit had obtained sufficient assurance across all aspects of the 
opinion and were therefore able to issue an audit opinion.  Taking all information into 
account as set out in the report, the governance framework, risk management and 
financial control were all assessed as green, performing well.  The internal control 
environment was assessed as Amber, performing adequately, mainly due to the ICT 
improvement areas outlined in the 
progress report.  Overall, the assessment was green, performing well. 
 
In response to questions, it was reported that 100% of questionnaires issued were 
returned from between 8-10 managers who rated the Internal Audit service as excellent.    
 

Action: JS 
Email Members with the list of audits deferred due to the 25% reduction of the 2020/21 
audit plan, as reported in November 2020. 

 
The Chairman commented that the information was very reassuring and the Committee 
noted the report. 

Page 17



Audit & Governance Committee 
24 May 2021 
 

 
84   TRANSFER OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 

 
The Committee received a report by the Section 151 Officer, regarding a proposal to 
transfer the internal audit function to Lincolnshire County Council. 
 
The Council’s internal audit function was currently undertaken through Lincoln City 
Council.  Transferring the function to Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) would provide a 
greater level of resilience and consistency in approach across the Strategic Alliance. 
 
Officers recommended that the Committee send this recommendation to Cabinet to 
effect the transfer. 
 
Whilst there were no specific issues highlighted with the current service provision, there 
was an increasing need for specialist audit capacity specifically around areas such as 
fraud and ICT, and with a relatively small team, it was difficult to develop the required 
range of expertise. 
 
More generally, a shared approach would allow the following benefits to be secured: 
 

 Streamlined service with single set of personnel for both Councils within the Alliance 
and PSPS 

 Combining all oversight work for both Councils into one principal officer thereby 
merging liaison meetings, management team and committee attendance and 
reports 

 Combined audit reviews providing assurance across the Alliance that would 
potentially reduce the number of days on each audit as there would be one audit 
report and closure process rather than two 

 Shared intelligence and highlighting of inconsistent practices. 

 A reduced day rate allowing annual savings of around £3,000. 

 Reduced impact on PSPS as not having two sets of auditors reviewing the same 
systems. 

 Access to other expertise from the Assurance Lincs offer (Risk, Fraud, Health and 
Safety and Audit specialisms) 

 Increased resilience provided by a larger team to mitigate against sickness, loss of 
key staff etc. 

 
The provisional date for the transfer of the internal audit service, subject to necessary 
approvals and agreed contractual terms, was 1st July 2021. Whilst it was not currently 
proposed to make any changes to the level of audit days, this would be reviewed during 
the year as the risk environment changed and efficiencies could be achieved. 
 
The Section 151 Officer stressed that the proposal purely concerned realigning the 
internal audit function between the two authorities under one manager to achieve a 
greater degree of consistency and resilience built into the service.  The small budget 
saving was incidental and the proposal did not involve PSPS.  The Portfolio Holder for 
Finance had considered the proposal and was satisfied with this approach. 
 

Page 18



Audit & Governance Committee 
24 May 2021 

 

In response to questions, the Section 151 Officer reported that City of Lincoln had not 
been approached to take on the internal audit work for both authorities purely due to 
LCC’s greater degree of resilience. 
 
Boston’s treasury management function had transferred to PSPS, but was carried out by 
separate staff currently.  Discussions had taken place with respect to the payroll 
function, but due to the timing of the PSPS proposal, it would remain with North 
Kesteven District Council for the current year.    
 

Action: AS 
Advise Councillor Dani of any potential fraudulent activity relating to Government grants 
paid to businesses to assist with the impact of the pandemic. 

 
Councillor Alison Austin and the Chairman declared that they served as Members of 
Lincolnshire County Council, but had not had any input to the proposal.  It was 
confirmed that this did not preclude them from taking part and voting on the officer’s 
recommendation to put the proposal to Cabinet for approval. 
 
Members recognised the advantages of the proposal in terms of capacity, specialism 
and consistency.  They then proposed a vote of thanks to the current internal auditors 
for the work they had done for the Council over the years. 
 

RESOLVED: That it be recommended to Cabinet that the Council’s Internal Audit 
function be transferred to Lincolnshire County Council.   

 
85   ANNUAL FRAUD PERFORMANCE REPORT 

 
The report was noted. 
 
86   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
The Chairman remarked that it was a priority for the Committee to consider the new 
model Code of Conduct now that the Local Government Association had adopted it.  It 
would go to the Councillor Development Group to consider first and then the Standards 
Sub-Committee, but it was hoped the Committee would be able to consider it at its 
September meeting.   
 
A Member echoed the Chairman’s comments feeling that the Code of Conduct needed 
to be ratified and made part of the Council’s constitution as soon as possible. 
 
A national code of conduct for all, from parish councils through to mayoral unitary 
authorities was highly welcome.  It was crucial to the reputation of the Council to have a 
code of conduct that was fit for purpose. 
 
Members then put forward a vote of thanks to Councillor Ashton for his chairmanship, 
which was very much appreciated.  In turn, the Chairman thanked Members for their 
dedication as a Committee and for the work and responsibility they had taken on. 

 
 

The Meeting ended at 7.40 pm 

Page 19



Page 20



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

20 September 2021 

Present: Councillor Peter Watson (Chairman), Councillor George Cornah (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Richard Austin BEM, David Brown, Anton Dani, Paul Goodale, 
Frank Pickett, Stephen Woodliffe and Mr Alan Pickering 
 
In attendance: Councillor Jonathan Noble, Portfolio Holder for Finance 
 
Officers –  
Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer, Assistant Director - Regulation, Insights & 
Transformation Manager, Chief Finance Officer, Deputy Chief Finance Officer 
(Corporate), Matthew Waller, Interim Internal Principal Auditor for BBC and Senior 
Democratic Services Officer 
 
1   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the last meeting, held on 24th May 2021, were agreed as a correct record 
and signed by the Chairman. 
 
2   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillors Tom Ashton and Katie Chalmers. 
 
3   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
4   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
5   INVESTIGATORY POWERS COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE (IPCO) 

INSPECTION IN RELATION TO THE USE OF THE REGULATION OF 
INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA - THE ACT) 
 

The Assistant Director - Regulation presented a report, which provided a summary of 
the key findings from the inspection of the Council by the Investigatory Powers 
Commissioner’s Office (IPCO) on 23rd March 2021.  IPCO undertook an inspection of 
the Council’s policies, procedures and records in respect of the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) and how the Council had discharged its duties 
under the Act.  
 
The Act governed public authorities’ use of directed covert surveillance and use of 
“covert human intelligence sources” (CHIS) and it was a requirement of Home Office 
Covert Surveillance and Property Interference Code of Practice (August 2018) that the 
extent of the Councils RIPA activity was reported to Members at least annually.  The 
Council had not authorised any RIPA applications in the last 12 months. 
 
The Inspection was conducted virtually at the request of IPCO.   The Inspector was 
made aware of the Council’s strategic alliance with East Lindsey District Council and of 
its intention to review the current RIPA policy and prepare a single ‘joint alliance’ RIPA 

Page 21



Audit & Governance Committee 
20 September 2021 
 

policy document.  The aim was to maximise the training and experience that officers had 
across both authorities and provide a single point of policy reference when any 
regulated activity was undertaken. One of the key findings was a recommendation from 
refresher training for all key officers; although rarely used, officers needed to be trained 
in case these powers had to be exercised. 
 
Information provided by the Council to the Inspector demonstrated a level of 
compliance, which satisfied the Inspector and removed the Council from the obligation 
to host a physical inspection of records.   
 
In response to Members’ questions, the Assistant Director confirmed that Boston 
already managed the CCTV system for South Holland District Council and he was not 
aware of any legislation modifications that would improve the Council’s discharge of 
duties under the Act. The Council used overt surveillance, not covert, and that included 
surveillance to monitor fly-tipping hotspots with signage clearly displayed that CCTV was 
in operation, and these current arrangements were successful in identifying 
perpetrators.  Overt surveillance was a tool that the Council could consider using, but it 
was not been deemed necessary and application would have to be made to a 
magistrate with evidence that it was a proportionate measure.   
 
The Committee noted the report. 
 
6   QUARTER 1 2021/22 RISK REPORT 

 
The Insights & Transformation Manager presented a report, which provided an update 
on risk management as at the end of Quarter 1 of 2021/2022 (June 2021) to provide 
assurance to the Committee that corporate governance arrangements were in place and 
functioning effectively. 
 
As previously reported, work was ongoing towards a single risk management approach 
across the Strategic Alliance, with the potential to extend this across the new South East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership in future.  The report set out a staged approach to 
achieve this.  The content of the risk registers would be local to Boston in the first 
instance, particularly the strategic risk register, as this was based on Boston’s corporate 
priorities. 
 
Although the Committee was not the decision making body for risk management, by 
receiving the reports prior to Cabinet, Members would be able to comment on the 
approach taken and provide assurance to Cabinet on the process followed. 
 
All Members were invited to a risk workshop to allow them to input into the identification 
of the strategic risks that could prevent the achievement of Boston’s corporate priorities. 
This would then be pulled together into a draft strategic risk register to be formally 
reported through the Committee and Cabinet. 
 
Members agreed that the strategic risk workshop be held prior to the Committee’s next 
meeting on 8th November. 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



Audit & Governance Committee 
20 September 2021 

 

7   UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020/21 
 

The Deputy Chief Finance Officer (Corporate) presented the unaudited Financial 
Statements 2020/21, including the Annual Governance Statement, attached to the report 
at Appendix A, for the Committee’s consideration in accordance with the Council’s good 
practice.   
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 required that the Responsible Finance Officer 
(Section 151 Officer) signed the unaudited Financial Statements no later than 31 May 
each year and that the Financial Statements be considered and approved by a 
committee of the Council no later than 31 July each year.   
 
However, due to the Coronavirus Pandemic, the regulations had been amended for 
2020/21.  The Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) Amendments Regulation 2020 (SI 
2021/263) required that the Section 151 Officer signed the unaudited Financial 
Statements no later than 1 August 2021 and that they be considered and approved, 
including the Annual Governance Statement, by a committee of the Council no later than 
30 September 2021.  The Section 151 Officer had formally approved the unaudited 
Financial Statements for publication in line with the statutory deadline of 1 August 2021. 
 
The Financial Statements 2020/21 production was complete and had been prepared in 
accordance with the Code of Practice and the Council’s accounting policies.  The 
unaudited version of shown at Appendix A included the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, Movement in Reserves Statement, and Balance Sheet as at 31 
March 2021, along with the Annual Governance Statement.  
 
The Deputy Chief Finance Officer went through the narrative and key points of the 
statements in some detail. 
 
The net worth of the Council, as shown in the Balance Sheet, had decreased by 
£8.461m and the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement reflected this.  
The main reasons were set out in paragraph 1.7 of the report.   
 
The major changes in the Balance Sheet at the year-end, considered significant enough 
to warrant specific reference, were: 

 

 An increase of £9.0m in Short-term Creditors, mainly due to Covid grants received 
in 2020/21 but not yet paid out to businesses, therefore ‘owed’ to Central 
Government at the year end, and also due to Section 31 Grant relating to Business 
Rates, where Central Government and Lincolnshire County Council’s shares were 
also paid to Boston Borough Council to assist with cash flow in year, and is 
therefore due to be paid back at year end.  
 

 An increase of £8.5m in Short-term Debtors, mainly due to the accounting entries 
associated with the resulting deficits on the Council Tax and Business Rates 
Collection Fund at 31 March 2021. The debtor balances were the net positions 
attributable from Lincolnshire County Council, Lincolnshire Police Authority and 
Central Government on the Collection Fund. 

 

Page 23



Audit & Governance Committee 
20 September 2021 
 

 The Actuary’s assessment of the Council’s net Pension Liability increased by 
£9.4m, as a result of changes in demographic and financial assumptions. 

 
It was noted that updated pensions reports had been requested following notification 
from Lincolnshire County Council regarding some updated asset valuations.  
 
The audit by Mazars LLP commenced on 16 August 2021 and was in progress, though 
work was taking longer because it was being carried out remotely.  Officers met weekly 
with Mazars and were working to respond to queries and provide information as 
requests were received.  It was expected that there might be changes to the financial 
statements and these would be highlighted when the audited statements were 
presented to the Committee.  It was intended to present the Financial Statements to the 
Committee for approval on 8th November. 
 
The Deputy Chief Finance Officer then clarified some issues in response to questions 
raised.  The difference of £22m in “Other service expenses” compared to the previous 
year, as shown in Section 14 of the statements, was due to accounting for some of the 
Covid-19 grants that the Council had issued.  An update had been requested regarding 
the withheld repayments of the Council’s fixed term loan, which would be reported back 
to Members.  
 
Members accepted an offer from the Deputy Chief Finance Officer to hold a briefing to 
go through the financial statements in more detail to aid understanding. 
 

Action: ES 
1. Advise Members of the current situation with respect to the Council’s fixed-term loan, 

including clarification as to whether the withheld repayments were being capitalised. 
2. Advise Councillor Dani regarding expenditure on consultation. 
3. Arrange a briefing for Members on the financial statements via Zoom prior to the 

Committee’s consideration of the audited financial statements. 

 
Members went on to discuss the poor sound quality of the venue, particularly with 
respect to virtual attendees, who were asked to attend in person in future if possible.  In 
order to accommodate this, it was suggested that the next meeting be held at Boston 
United’s conference centre. 
 

Action: JC 
Arrange the Committee’s next meeting to be held at the BUFC Conference Centre 

 
8   TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL STRATEGY UPDATE - 

QUARTER 1 2021/22 
 

The Chief Finance Officer presented a report, which set out the Treasury Management 
and relevant capital strategy activities of the Council for the period 1 April to 30 June 
2021. 
 
In terms of investment returns, the Council was expecting to achieve a total of £914,000 
for 2021/22, comprising £893,000 gross distribution income from property fund holdings 
(i.e. before deduction of management fees) and £21,000 from cash investments. This 
compared to the total gross annual budget of £1,016,000 

Page 24



Audit & Governance Committee 
20 September 2021 

 

 
The Council was generally keeping cash investments short term up to a maximum of 
twelve months. As the financial climate changed, who the Council invested with and the 
amount invested, was under constant scrutiny, taking into account risk at any particular 
moment in time. 
 
During debate, there was a view that the rate of return from the property fund 
investments was satisfactory, but there was another view that it was worrying, as it did 
not cover the investment made initially.  The Portfolio Holder explained in detail how 
these long-term investments were performing satisfactorily and the Section 151 Officer 
pointed out that the report only indicated a point in time.  
 

Action: SH/JM 
Include graphs in future reports to show the direction of travel of the rate of return from 
the Council’s property fund investments. 

 
Members discussed concerns regarding inflation and the impact of the significant rise in 
the cost of gas and labour shortages etc.  The Chief Finance Officer confirmed that the 
Council’s financial advisors, Link Asset Services, had provided their view on interest 
rates shortly after the end of the relevant period (June 2021), as the Council received 
updates on a quarterly basis.  The Monetary Policy Committee appeared to expect 
that inflationary indicators would increase over the next 12 months once the impact 
of the recovery took hold, but would then subside.  However, this report predated 
the emerging energy crisis and future reports would reflect this.  
 
The report was then noted. 
 
9   INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2021/22 

 
The Internal Audit Team Manager presented the Internal Audit Charter for 2021/22.   
 
The Charter formally defined Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and responsibility, 
setting out Internal Audit’s position within the Council and defining the scope of Internal 
Audit activities, setting out the way the service worked and what the Committee could 
expect from the service. 
 
The Charter lay behind all the work that Internal Audit carried out for the Council and 
gave assurance that it was in line with professional internal audit standards in the same 
way as the service previously provided to the Council by the City of Lincoln.  Annual 
reports and opinions, and regular progress reports would continue to be issued. 
 
Members welcomed the new Internal Audit service and looked forward to working with 
its officers in the future. 
 
10   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
The Internal Audit Team Manager presented the Internal Audit Progress Report as at 
September 2021. 
 

Page 25



Audit & Governance Committee 
20 September 2021 
 

Since the last Progress report in May 2021, work had commenced on the 2021/22 Audit 
Plan and seven audits were in progress. All audits within the 2020/21 audit plan had 
now been completed. 
 
In this period one assurance review had been completed, Governance, Risk 
Management & Counter Fraud (20/21), which had achieved Substantial assurance.   
 
The following audits were in progress: 
• Brexit 
• Towns Fund 
• Income 
• Housing Benefit Subsidy 
• Boston Town Area Committee 
• Carbon Reduction 
• Flood Management 
 
The Committee’s attention was brought to the section of the report that set out 
details of some of the recent public interest reports, including Liverpool City Council 
and a Grant Thornton report, which pulled together a number of public interest 
reports and listed the lessons learned from them.  These were useful documents for 
the Committee to consider, as they showed the common themes and issues that 
authorities currently struggled with and a key finding was the importance of culture 
and ethics. 
 
The report was noted. 
 
11   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
It was noted that the report on Accounting Policies would be an agenda item for the 
Committee’s meeting on 28th March 2022. 
 
A Member asked if the Member Code of Conduct would be brought to the Committee in 
the near future.  Also, whether the three authorities of the new South & East Lincolnshire 
Councils Partnership would adopt the same version and if it would be similar to that of 
the County Council.  
 
The Monitoring Officer explained that, since his recent appointment, his focus had to be 
on the legalities behind the new partnership, but the Code of Conduct was a priority.  It 
was expected that the three authorities would adopt the model Code of Conduct 
produced by the Local Government Association and, therefore, it would be very similar 
to the County Council’s Code of Conduct.   
 
Members requested regular briefings with fund managers and stressed the importance 
of all Members receiving updates throughout the year.   
 
The Section 151 Officer confirmed that a programme of activity for the Committee was 
being drawn up, some of which would be opened to all Members, and reminded 
Members of the financial training sessions already arranged to take place in the next 
couple of weeks.   
 

Page 26



Audit & Governance Committee 
20 September 2021 

 

Action: CM 
Give consideration to drafting a briefing note covering the details of the Council’s 
property fund investments and the fixed term loan and include both in future training 
sessions. 

 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 8.20 pm 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: Council  

DATE: 22nd November 2021 

SUBJECT: SCRUTINY PANEL TOPIC – Joint BBC/ELDC Scrutiny of the Strategic 

Alliance 

KEY DECISION:  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

NO 

This is a report of the Joint Scrutiny & Policy Panel 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

Rebecca James, Scrutiny Officer 

ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committees of Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey District 

Council commissioned a Joint Scrutiny Panel to undertake a review of the Strategic Alliance 

between the two Councils. 

The Panel’s report is set out at Appendix A. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 To note the Panel’s report at Appendix A. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To note the recommendations put forward by the Joint Scrutiny & Policy Panel as part of a 

scrutiny process to help inform future Partnership working. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

None 

 

 

  

Page 29

Agenda Item 2



REPORT 

1. This covering report brings forward a Joint Scrutiny Report with recommendations as attached 

at Appendix A. 

2. The scope of this work was agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committees at ELDC, and BBC 

as attached at Appendix B. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Only those considered by the Panel in the attached report. 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Only those considered by the Panel in the attached report. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

Only those considered by the Panel in the attached report. 

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

Only those considered by the Panel in the attached report. 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

Only those considered by the Panel in the attached report. 

 

CONSULTATION 

The report has been prepared by the Chair and Vice Chair of the joint scrutiny panel and agreed by 

panel members. 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

Appendix A Scrutiny Report - Joint BBC/ELDC Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance 

Appendix B Scoping Document 

Appendix C Questions for Witnesses 

Appendix D Councillor Questionnaire Results 

Appendix E Meeting Notes 

Page 30



 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item was previously considered by BBC Corporate & Community Committee on 

4th November 2021. 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Rebecca James,  Scrutiny Officer 

Signed off by: James Gilbert, Assistant Director, Corporate 

Approved for publication: James Gilbert, Assistant Director, Corporate  

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 
 

JOINT SCRUTINY PANEL OF THE STRATEGIC ALLIANCE 
 

Joint BBC/ELDC Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance 
 

Councillors ELDC: F. Martin, E. Mossop (Vice Chair), H. Matthews, S. Devereux, D. 
Mangion, C, Newman, D. Edginton. 
 
Councillors BBC: S. Woodliffe, J. Welbourn, J. Skinner (Chair), A. Dani, K. Chalmers, P. 
Goodale, D. Brown. 
 
Officers: James Gilbert (Assistant Director, Corporate) Rebecca James (Scrutiny 
Officer)  
 
Witnesses: Councillor Craig Leyland (Leader, ELDC), Councillor Paul Skinner (Leader, 
BBC), Councillor Jonathan Noble (Finance Portfolio Holder, BBC) Rob Barlow (Joint 
Chief Executive), Christine Marshall (Deputy Chief Executive / S151 Officer), Adrian 
Sibley, (Deputy Chief Executive, Programme Delivery) 
 
Introduction 
 
In July 2020, Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey District formed a strategic 
alliance. The Councils retained their independence and have been working towards a 
single officer team to deliver their respective priorities. The alliance was projected to 
deliver £15.4m in savings over ten years; whilst providing both Councils with greater 
capacity to deliver their priorities. 
 
This joint scrutiny panel was asked to undertake a review of the alliance and merged 
workforce, focusing on 4 key areas: 
 

1. To understand the progress that has been made so far in bringing together 
functions and teams across the alliance; 

2. To assess whether joint working on the planning and delivery of services has 
mitigated pressure on the Councils’ budgets; and whether projected savings 
(money and capacity) are being achieved; 

3. To understand the opportunities that have been secured by the Councils’ 
working collaboratively together; 

4. To understand how it has been possible to merge cultures, the difficulties that 
have arisen from this and how this can be managed.  

 
The panel met 3 times, interviewed 6 witnesses (Questions found at Appendix C), and 
conducted a survey among BBC and ELDC Councillors to canvass their views. The 
results of the survey are attached at Appendix D. 
 
 
 

Page 33



Appendix A 

 
 

Panel Discussion / Analysis 
 
Managing a scrutiny across our two Councils is no easy task as alignment of 
Councillors’ diaries to attend these joint meetings becomes more difficult. This is  
illustrated by the fact that the report is led by two Councillors, Judith Skinner, the 
elected Chairman and Edward Mossop, the Vice-Chairman who chaired the final 
meeting. Going forward, these difficulties could be exacerbated by the entry of South 
Holland into the alliance and so we note that early fixing of dates for future joint 
scrutiny would be welcomed. 
 
That said, the panel could not have managed this process without the guidance and 
expertise from Rebecca James and James Gilbert who were supportive throughout the 
meetings and we are grateful to them and also to the witnesses who were interviewed 
for willingly giving up their evening to talk to us. The remote meetings were conducted 
in a relaxed, yet challenging manner and all Councillors present contributed to the 
debate.  Thank you! 
 
The interviews were conducted over two meetings with senior Councillors and 
members of the Officer leadership team including the Chief Executive. Members 
adhered to the 4 key areas of enquiry as outlined above and used evidence from the 
Councillor questionnaire and information from the staff satisfaction survey to further 
challenge the witnesses. The interviewees gave a wholly positive picture of the 
progress of the alliance illustrated by examples of how teams across two Councils have 
come together. We sought assurance that the projected savings as outlined in the 
original agreement were being achieved (they are). We asked for examples of how 
collaborative working has furthered opportunities for both Councils (e.g., towns fund 
bids) and further suggested ways in which the alliance could effectively use combined 
power to achieve successful outputs (e.g., lobby on behalf of the IDBs). We asked 
about how the merging cultures of two and now, three Councils can be successfully 
managed and, in our recommendations, have highlighted suggested ways of doing this 
to create a common identity for this large area of Lincolnshire. The notes from our 
meetings are attached at Appendix E. 
   
In addition to the witnesses who were interviewed the panel agreed to send out a 
short questionnaire to all Councillors to gauge their views on how they felt the alliance 
was progressing. We received fifteen responses, the full results are attached at 
Appendix D. There were several common themes that emerged from the responses 
which have formed the basis of some of our recommendations. These include clear 
lines of communications, cementing relationships, alignment of policies and joint 
meetings. Not all Councillors are positive about the alliance and it is also noted that a 
large majority did not respond to the questionnaire. Thank you to those that did 
respond and for the useful pointers that guided us. 
 
Our final hour of discussion led to the refining of our recommendations which were 
circulated the day after our meeting and agreed by email. An additional 
recommendation relating to the continuing joint scrutiny monitoring of the now, 

Page 34



Appendix A 

 
 

three-way alliance was included to ensure this important joint work of non-executive 
Councillors continues going forward. 
 
Recommendations 
 

1. That staff ‘snapshot’ surveys are reported to Overview / Scrutiny on a 6-
monthly basis along with staff turnover figures, in order to monitor any 
significant changes; 

 
2. Review the ICT roadmap priorities and ensure that shared email addresses for 

officers is given the highest priority; 
 

3. To develop a shared strategy to ensure that staff are valued and given 
opportunities to progress, with a view to enhancing recruitment and retention; 

 
4. To better communicate to staff, councillors, and residents any relevant 

updates or priorities, and to celebrate the successes across the alliance; 
 

5. To provide opportunities for more collaborative working for all councillors, 
such as scrutiny panels, project groups, and other shared opportunities across 
the alliance / partnership, especially where there is commonality, e.g., 
licensing and planning policy; 

 
6. To provide an opportunity for councillors to visit partner districts to meet other 

councillors and gain an awareness of the ‘place’ of other districts; 
 

7. Move to an alignment of policies, e.g., procurement, climate change, and 
recycling; 

 
8. To encourage the development of a strong sense of identity within the 3 areas 

of the alliance and the opportunities that they offer. This will help develop a 
sustainable, resilient, and vibrant economy and population; 

 
9. To prepare a strategy so the partnership is fully prepared for the possibility of 

devolution. 
 

10.  That the alliance should work together to lobby the government to ensure the 
financial sustainability of the IDBs on which the residents and the land of the 
3 councils heavily rely; 

 
11. To convene a shared scrutiny panel of the 3 Councils in the new Partnership at 

the end of the first and second year, in order to undertake a review of the 
Partnership and merged workforce. 

 
 
Report authors: Councillor Judith Skinner and Councillor Edward Mossop 
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 
 

SCRUTINY & POLICY PANEL 
 

Project Scoping Template 
 

Topic: Joint BBC/ELDC Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance 

 
 
 
 

Objectives and Key Issues: 

 

Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey District have formed a strategic alliance. The 
Councils retain their independence and are working towards a single officer team to deliver 
their respective priorities.  The alliance will deliver £15.4m in savings over the next ten 
years; whilst providing both Councils with greater capacity to deliver their priorities. 

The objective of the panel is to undertake a review of the alliance and merged workforce. 

 

 

Lines of Enquiry: 
 

- To understand the progress that has been made so far in bringing together functions 
and teams across the alliance; 

- To assess whether joint working on the planning and delivery of services has 
mitigated pressure on the Councils’ budgets; and whether projected savings (money 
and capacity) are being achieved; 

- To understand the opportunities that have been secured by the Councils’ working 
collaboratively together; 

- To understand how it has been possible to merge cultures, the difficulties that have 
arisen from this and how this can be managed.  

 
 
 

 

 
Standard Areas to Consider: Equalities / Relationship with Corporate Strategy / Financial 
Implication 
 
 
 
 

Witnesses 

Internal:  

ELDC /BBC Leader 

ELDC / BBC Chief Executive 

ELDC / BBC Members 

Relevant officers 

Page 37



Appendix B 
 

External:  

PSPS 
 

Resources: Rebecca James, Scrutiny Officer 

Liaison Officer: James Gilbert, Interim Deputy Chief Executive 

Required officer expertise: To be decided as the scrutiny review progresses 

 

 

Timescale 

Start date: late July UPDATE early September 

End date: late August UPDATE early October 

Target Overview / Scrutiny meeting: September (7th & 16th) UPDATE November (4th BBC, 30th 

ELDC) 

Target Council meeting: September 27th / October 13th UPDATE November 22nd (BBC) 
December 15th (ELDC) 
 

 

Page 38



Appendix C 
 

 

Questions for witnesses 

 

Are you happy with the progress that has been made so far in bringing together functions and 
teams across the alliance? (For Rob, Leaders) 

Do you feel the Alliance has mitigated pressure on the Councils’ budgets; and are you 
confident that projected savings (money and capacity) are being achieved? (For S151 & PFH) 

What opportunities have been secured by the Councils’ working collaboratively together? 
(For Rob, Leaders, S151, PFH) 

Do you feel it has been possible to merge cultures? Have any difficulties arisen and how can 
this be managed? (For Rob, Leaders) 
  
 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



ID Start time Completion time Email Name

In your view, what have been the positives of 

the Strategic Alliance between BBC and ELDC? 

Do you have any examples of positive impact 

you would like to share?

In your view, what would you improve 

about the Strategic Alliance between BBC 

and ELDC? Do you have any suggestions 

you would like to share?

What do you think we can learn 

from the BBC and ELDC Strategic 

Alliance to take forward as the 

South & East Lincolnshire Councils 

Partnership progresses?

1 9/27/21 14:36:24 9/27/21 14:40:37 anonymous

Greater  team working , increased energy and 

expertise.

A way forward that combines strategy 

while maintaining the flavour of each 

council

Joint training sessions etc.

One Team. Empowering, supporting 

projects members and staff to play 

their part.

2 9/27/21 14:42:43 9/27/21 14:49:06 anonymous

Sharing officers across the alliance partners 

means we can look at best practices and learn 

from each other

Similar areas of responsibility between 

portfolios and structures to allow 

management teams to work closer across 

the alliance

Taking on a third partner and 

learning from each other on a wider 

basis to increase productivity and 

achieve greater cost efficiencies

3 9/27/21 14:50:51 9/27/21 14:57:00 anonymous

That East Lindsey staff will get a pay rise to 

bring them into line with their colleagues they 

are expected to work with - and manage.

Communications. No one has any idea of 

who does what any more. Its an absolute 

disaster so far - and having two different 

constitutions ensures that no-one answers 

emails in a timely manner. We cant keep 

blaming Covid. The staff are far too 

stretched so having adequate staffing 

would be an improvement. In fact anything 

would….

Communications, communications, 

communications. Officers far too 

remote from the public they serve. 

Computer stuff does not harmonise. 

Salaries vary inconsistently. Walk 

before you run - the detail is 

important despite what some 

councillors spout. It doesn’t work 

having different constitutions. How 

much more do you need…we 

councillors could write a book. The 

whole place feels like it is falling to 

pieces.

P
age 41



4 9/27/21 14:49:24 9/27/21 15:11:57 anonymous

One of the big advantages of the Strategic 

Alliance is the ability to share officers, clearly 

both councils have experts in certain areas of 

council work, an officer having a speciality could 

be gainfully employed full time by the alliance 

but one council on its own would not find 

enough work to employ an officers full time and 

example where we have shared officers before 

is the monitoring officer.

 

Where portfolios over lap then both council 

portfolio meetings are now merged where 

possible this saves officer time and also 

provides opportunities to see what another 

council is doing to tackle problems and can they 

be sorted out more efficient and effectively 

I would like to see more joint meetings at 

member level.  Where services we are 

delivered jointly then the possibility of 

joint scrutiny could be considered, another 

one that would make sense is a joint 

planning policy committee and economic 

development

Seeing the larger perspective for a 

triple alliance in as much that the 

alliance will cover about 40% of 

Lincolnshire so we will have an even 

stronger voice on issues that affect 

us all such as major infrastructure 

particularly the road network, Sea 

defences with a view to long term 

problem solving not just short term 

fixes,

Working collaboratively to bring new 

industry and quality jobs to the area, 

development of the tourist economy 

to include more that just a fish and 

chips seaside offer, there is a wealth 

of history and culture to be 

discovered in the three areas which 

each of them have and can be 

developed to improve and make the 

offer more diverse

5 9/27/21 14:48:25 9/27/21 15:20:12 anonymous

I think some of the positives have been less 

visible, such as improvements in the staffing of 

smaller departments. We would really notice 

that if there were issues, but it tends to pass 

with less notice when things are going 

smoothly. Aligning IT systems may turn out to 

be a big improvement in the end. It has been 

useful to have closer ties with colleagues in 

Boston and to learn from them. 

I don’t know what everyone does as well 

as previously. So keeping an organisational 

chart regularly updated and sent out is 

useful. The staff numbers we’ve lost 

weren’t people doing nothing, or 

necessarily doing jobs that didn’t need to 

be done. So there is a loss of capacity that 

needs to be monitored closely. 

We will need clear lines of 

communication about who does 

what as the organisation changes 

quickly. We need to make sure 

employees stay on within the 

organisation and aren’t put off by the 

instability brought about by a lot of 

change, so we have to make sure 

employees feel valued, and are 

valued, by the Alliance.

P
age 42



6 9/27/21 16:00:15 9/27/21 16:17:49 anonymous

So far, so good!

Its giving us access to a wider pool of 

experience and knowledge and collectively 

having the potential to improve the services 

that we offer.

On occasions it would help if the person on 

the end of the phone understood the 

situation here, in Boston. This may well be 

reciprocated with ELDC members and 

Boston based staff.

To that end I think it might help if we could 

meet some of these "names" who 

probably work behind the scenes rather 

than the ones who attend out meetings. 

The two districts are quite different, even 

when there are apparently the same issues 

but of course the geography and 

demographics are different.

For many of us the area of South 

Holland has more in common with us 

in Boston however its people are 

different again. Once again I'm going 

into this very positively as I see this 

as a necessity with the situation in 

Local Gov funding. I think that if 

Unitary is suddenly thrust upon us, 

we can be better prepared than had 

we tried to carry on in our own little 

canoe, paddling away on our own.

7 9/27/21 16:54:19 9/27/21 16:56:02 anonymous none that I can think of I.T that works return to offices of all staff

8 9/27/21 18:28:29 9/27/21 18:32:06 anonymous

THAT THERE HAVE BEEN NO REDUNDANCY 

ONLY PEOPLE MOVED SIDEWAYS AND 

RETAINING THEIR ORIGINAL TERMS

A MANAGEMENT BOARD THAT KNOWS 

WHAT NEEDS DOING AND COMES UP 

WITH THE GOODS. WALK BEFORE YOU CAN RUN

9 9/28/21 10:10:37 9/28/21 10:17:42 anonymous

To carry the non decision making councillors 

along it was vital that progress was regularly 

reported. The regular mini newsletters from CX 

have been very useful in doing this.

All of this happened with the backdrop of 

the pandemic and getting together has not 

been the simple job it used to be. I’m 

reasonably certain that an induction style 

event where councillors and officers could 

get acquainted could have been useful in 

cementing relationships. See above.

10 9/28/21 15:07:06 9/28/21 15:08:59 anonymous I don’t know any

There is a cross over between the different 

social media of the councils, it is absolutely 

imperative that these are kept separate To put people before money!

11 9/28/21 11:52:49 9/28/21 16:04:40 anonymous

I don't know of any 

I have no examples of any positive impact the 

alliance has had 

Hard to say as we have not been working 

normally because of C19

Avoid remoteness between officers 

and members 

P
age 43



12 9/29/21 7:56:41 9/29/21 8:14:45 anonymous Savings 

Single policy for waste collection i.e. glass 

at Boston not East Lindsey I am also 

concerned with the management structure 

Too many layers of management I do not 

know why we have all these deputies 

Managers should make decisions and refer 

to chief executive I think it is a bit of a 

gravy train and inefficient Too early to say

13 9/29/21 9:06:31 9/29/21 9:11:33 anonymous

Sharing knowledge and certain practices that 

the other council may not have 

done/considered previously.  Obviously saving 

money with a shared management team. 

It is hard because we set it up during covid 

and as we are not back to normal as yet we 

have not seen a normal working 

environment.    Contact details being more 

streamlined - not knowing if the staff 

member has an ELDC or BBC email address 

when you wish to make contact is rather 

frustrating. 

As previously stated, due to being set 

up in a pandemic of which we are not 

out of it is hard to say.  However, 

keeping all within each council 

informed of the correct contacts for 

departments and hopefully 

streamlining the email addresses to 

make it easier for all.

14 10/1/21 11:33:17 10/1/21 11:46:26 anonymous

None that are visible to me. Didn’t know who 

did what before the merger and now even 

further in the dark.

An exhaustive internal telephone directory 

with full contact details and job 

responsibilities. Job responsibilities to be in 

plain English not ‘Council speak’. All 

acronyms to be fully explained. Less use of 

highfalutin titles which baffle rather than 

inform.

Not sure if ‘working from home’ isn’t, 

in some cases, an oxymoron. Three 

districts maybe just means more 

‘smoke and mirrors’.

15 10/4/21 9:54:22 10/4/21 9:58:58 anonymous

Not seen any positives but I have seen and felt 

the result of negatives...........Boston IT staff 

leaving..

Sorry but it now feels too big. I only agreed 

to the Alliance for cost saving. Nothing

P
age 44



Appendix E 
 

 

JOINT SCRUTINY PANEL MEETING NOTES 
 
Name of Panel: Joint BBC/ELDC Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance 

 
Date and Time: 23rd September 2021, 6pm 

 
1.  Election of Chair (BBC) / Vice-Chair (ELDC) 

 

Councillor Judith Skinner was elected Chair and Councillor Edward Mossop was 
elected Vice-Chair. 

 
2.  Panel Discussion of Scope / Lines of Enquiry 

 
Councillor Fiona Martin suggested that a short questionnaire be sent to all ELDC 
and BBC councillors asking for their opinions on the issues raised in the lines of 

enquiry. It was agreed that the questions should be open-ended and look for 
positives and suggestions for improvement.  

 
It was agreed to invite the following witnesses: 
 

 Leaders of ELDC / BBC - Councillors Craig Leyland and Paul Skinner; 
 Finance Portfolio Holders for ELDC / BBC – Councillors Jonathan Noble and 

Richard Fry; 
 S151 Officer (former and current) – Adrian Sibley and Christine Marshall 
 Chief Executive – Rob Barlow 

 
Questions for witnesses were also discussed and it was agreed that the lines of 

enquiry be turned into questions and asked to witnesses as below: 
 

1. Are you happy with the progress that has been made so far in bringing 

together functions and teams across the alliance? (For Rob Barlow, Leaders) 
 

2. Do you feel the Alliance has mitigated pressure on the Councils’ budgets; 
and are you confident that projected savings (money and capacity) are 
being achieved? (For S151 Officers & Portfolio Holders) 

 
3. What opportunities have been secured by the Councils’ working 

collaboratively together? (For all witnesses) 
 

4. Do you feel it has been possible to merge cultures? Have any difficulties 

arisen and how can this be managed? (For Rob Barlow, Leaders) 
 

Discussions were had around opportunities such as the Towns Fund and Levelling 
Up Fund. ICT progress was also discussed, as was staff turnover including reasons 
for leaving, with the panel requesting figures for comparison with previous years. 

 
It was agreed that 2 further meetings would be required and that they would be 

on Thursday 7th October at 6pm, followed by a final meeting on Thursday 14th 
October at 6pm. 

 
The Scrutiny Officer was asked to action the following requests: 

Page 45



Appendix E 
 

 

 
 Request an ICT road map from Jackie Wight with accompanying cover note; 

 Create, circulate, and analyse an all-member questionnaire; 
 Request information on staff surveys and ‘snapshots’ from Rachel Robinson; 

 Request information on staff turnover and information held on reasons for 
leaving from HR/PSPS. 

 

Date and Time: 7th October 2021, 6pm 
 

3. Questions for Councillor Skinner 
 
 

Councillor Skinner (CPS) made the following comments in response to the 
questions he was asked: 

 
 CPS is very happy with the alliance; it has been a challenge and sometimes 

there are gaps, but he has been pleasantly surprised; 

 He feels the councils have managed to combine expertise to benefit the 
alliance. For example, the Towns Fund and other bids have been more 

successful because of it; 
 Opportunities have included greater capacity and resilience, sharing of best 

practice and cost savings; 
 Difficulties with merging staff and cultures seems to have been minimal. 

 

The following points were also noted: 
 

 CPS is confident about the way forward and does not feel this is a fragile 
alliance; 

 There is a need to work together to the best for our areas; 

 There is a tendency for Boston to have a more negative outlook, but there 
is work ongoing to change that and ensure the residents are on board; 

 Senior officers felt some strain, particularly in the early stages, but overall, 
the right officers fill the right posts; 

 CPS is pleased with shared officer team the alliance has in place; 

 With all the changes and different ways of working, it is important to ensure 
people are on board; 

 CPS confirmed that ELDC and BBC Leaders, Deputies and finance portfolio 
holders have regular meetings with the Chief Executive; 

 Council sovereignty is not up for discussion. This alliance (and now 

partnership) works well as the 3 councils all have similar rural and coastal 
issues and can work together on these; 

 If devolution was forced upon us, we would have more say; 
 As policies come up for updating it will make sense to align them. 

 

4.  Questions for Councillors Noble (CJN) 
 

Councillor Noble made the following comments in response to the questions he 
was asked: 
 

  CJN noted that Covid has changed things in terms of finances, both ELDC 
and BBC received government funding and BBC currently has a surplus; 

Page 46



Appendix E 
 

 

 CJN advised that the alliance was on course for meeting the projected 
savings; 

 Opportunities for the future include taking advantage of economies of scale, 
working together, and learning from each other; 

 Procurement service will eventually align although certain things will need 
to be different; 

 Having a SPOC such as a shared Chief Executive and S151 Officer has 

meant financial savings; 
 

The following points were also noted: 
 

 It was felt by the panel that most residents had reacted positively to the 

changes; 
 It was noted that as the shared officer core has effective line management 

then the challenges of working across 2 (now 3) councils should be easily 
managed; 

 Although there may occasionally be operational issues,  .officers are picking 

up on these before they get out of hand; 
 Having 2 and now 3 councils will mean that policies start to align, but the 

strategic direction may differ as each council could have different priorities; 
 Concern was raised over the drainage board levies for next year 

 
5.  Discussion of questionnaire results 

 

 IT seems to be one of the main areas for concern, particularly the syncing 
of email addresses; 

 CJN suggested that most of the concerns raised may be allayed if councillors 
read the regular email updates and Leader briefing; 

 The panel were disappointed by the low number of responses and asked or 

the questionnaire to be circulated again; 
 Communication was flagged as an issue; although the new contact book 

that as just been circulated should go some way to ensure improvements; 
 Timings for responses from officers to councillors needs to be aligned across 

the alliance. CJN advised that he had raised this with the Chief Executive 

and the aspiration is that all councillor queries should receive a response 
within 2 days; 

 CPS advised that there is a discussion regarding having an officer across 
the partnership to collate and track councillor queries moving forward. 

 

Emerging Recommendations (from 23/09 and 07/10): 
 

 Shared email address for officers; 
 Officer capacity; 
 Communications between Councillors and Officers; 

 Progress on ICT alignment. 
 

6.  Next meeting  
 
It was confirmed that the next meeting would be on 14th October 2021.  

 
The Scrutiny Officer was asked to action the following requests: 

 

Page 47



Appendix E 
 

 

 All Councillors not in attendance to be sent a recording of tonight’s meeting, 
along with a request to listen to it in preparation for the meeting on the 

14th; 
 The councillor questionnaire to be readvertised to all ELDC and BBC 

councillors for an extra week; 
 Information requested at the first meeting to be circulated to the panel once 

received. 

 
Date and Time: 14th October 2021, 6pm 

 
In response to a number of questions, the following information was provided from 
the witnesses, along with a number of comments from panel members: 

 
 

 Rob Barlow indicated he was happy with the results of the staff survey and 
believed anything above 60% was a positive result. He thinks the changes 
everyone has gone through including the pandemic, home working, 

alliance/partnership, have heightened normal anxieties. 
 Councillor Leyland felt there was a lot of context to read into the survey 

results, it being such an unsettled time had not helped. He felt the situation 
does need monitoring, as so much has been expected of staff over last 18 

months. It is hard to quantify where you want to be in a %, it is important 
to understand why figures are where they are. 

 It was noted that satisfaction is difficult to gauge, the panel mostly felt it 

was a reasonable figure and that communication from senior staff ensures 
others feel included and informed. 

 Regarding the survey, it was confirmed that a full survey was done but 
there is a focus on 4 key areas for tracker surveys each quarter. The panel 
suggested a need to dig down into the results to check it is not a particular 

service area that has concerns. 
 Regarding updates, the Chief Executive sends out a weekly email or video 

to all staff. The 2 Councils have also launched their ‘values and behaviour’ 
work, which builds on information from surveys. 

 

 Regarding staff turnover, Rob Barlow indicated numbers were as expected, 
many due to retirement, promotion etc. Councillor Leyland also felt the level 

was acceptable, not impacting on service areas and not creating gaps and 
vacancies. 

 Rob Barlow indicated that historically lots of movement is with people 

moving between councils in the area. This may impact the alliance / 
partnership and relocation, as there will the possibility to offer more 

development opportunities within the partnership as well as attracting 
people from a wider area. 

 A number of examples of opportunities from collaborative working were 

noted. The main example is the Town’s Fund – the council’s received the 
highest allocation of funds and have been held as an exemplar by 

Government. Also, ELDC heritage and tourism bids were better because of 
BBC input and BBC property schemes were better for ELDC input. Also, joint 
bids have just gone in for the levelling up fund and for the Pandemic 

response, the alliance provided extra resilience. 
 Drainage board issues were raised, and  a discussion was had on whether 

the new 3-way partnership could have more influence. The panel were 

Page 48



Appendix E 
 

 

advised that 3-way working had already begun, including joint pitches to 
government etc.  

 Adrian Sibley indicated that BBC was able to save money on a new IT 
system as they could use the ELDC/SHDC system and arrangements. 

 Procurement – panel members suggested the need for an aligned policy. It 
was advised that before she left, Alison Penn had mapped some timelines 
on when contracts were due for renewal (contract mapping). Currently the 

3 Councils have differing arrangements for procurement, but the plan is to 
look at a collective approach for this area. There has been a new 

procurement resource appointed who will look at strategy, spend 
analysis/review among other issues. At a strategic level, it is recognised we 
need higher level of expertise than we currently have. Christine Marshall 

advises the panel that the plan is to align as much as possible to make 
procurement a smooth process for the officer core. She also indicated this 

was a key opportunity for savings moving forwards and for avoiding 
increases. 

 Councillor Leyland advised the panel that it was difficult initially to find time 

for joint working, but we have good reasons to do it, so it was worth the 
extra effort. Central Government usually hit local government first, so our 

partnership will protect us, help us save money and give us capacity to 
deliver too. He also noted the partnership has ambitions and  wants this to 

work, with regular joint meetings as 2 councils now moving to 3. He noted 
there were more than needed at the moment in order to learn how each 
other works, so we can model the best way. 

 Rob Barlow indicated that the partnership is still early days, everyone is 
learning the different cultures and ways of working. The partnership has 

not reduced staff numbers so are better resourced. This is a new concept, 
so the partnership has had some scrutiny from peers. Rob Barlow noted 
that the first 6 months are key to ensuring the partnership is landed 

successfully. External partners keen to meet with us as a 3, this means we 
do things once instead of 3 times. Culture is easier for staff as there is no 

politics involved, just new colleagues. There is a need to ensure challenge 
/ opportunities for members is embraced to ensure things are not territorial. 

 

 The panel were keen to explore opportunities to come together to be 
aspirational for their areas while keeping sovereignty. 

 Rob Barlow indicated the partnership now has Growth and Delivery Teams 
in the new structure, which will help land big ideas, projects, investments. 
For example,  there could be discussions with highways on A16 as this road 

is key to all 3 areas for different reasons. There could also be other 
opportunities in agriculture and health.  

 Councillor Leyland advised of the need to take a strategic view, an example 
being the challenge to the Environment Agency to secure development of 
tourism on the coast. There can also be joint challenge where needed on 

heritage, agriculture, tourism. Teams need to keep at it and work together 
to get things done. 

 Regarding devolution, Councillor Leyland believes there is more potential to 
get a better deal as a partnership of 3 and we have to be prepared to deal 
with issue if arises. 

 Overall, it was felt that the Councils are on track to achieve the projected 
savings. It was noted that the move to a triple partnership will make the 

Page 49



Appendix E 
 

 

original projected savings for the alliance savings more difficult to quantify, 
but there will be a new 3-way target moving forwards. 

 
Agreement of potential recommendations 

 
A number of recommendations emerged over the course of the meeting around 
the staff survey, government lobbying, and partnership working. These were 

discussed, along with emerging recommendations from previous meetings. 10 
recommendations were drafted and agreed at the meeting. It was agreed that the 

final report to accompany the recommendations would be drafted by the Chair 
and Vice Chair and circulated to the members of the panel before being submitted 
to the relevant Committees for consideration. 

 

 

Page 50



   

 

REPORT TO: COUNCIL 

DATE: 22nd November 2021 

SUBJECT: BOSTON CITY STATUS APPLICATION   

KEY DECISION: 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

YES 

COUNCILLOR RICHARD AUSTIN 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

LYDIA RUSLING, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – ECONOMIC GROWTH 

ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

Boston Borough Council is working with partners to submit an application for the town to receive City 

Status as part of a competition launched to celebrate Her Majesty the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee next year. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To agree that Boston Borough Council will submit an application for the town to receive City Status 

as part of the competition to celebrate Her Majesty the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee in 2022. 

2. To delegate authority to Cllr Richard Austin in consultation with Michelle Sacks to approve and 

submit the application for City Status by the deadline of 8th December 2021.  

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To instil civic pride in Boston, highlight and promote its heritage and its worldwide connections, and 

increase investment opportunities for economic growth. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

No other options were considered given the deadline for the bid submission. 

Guidance was sought on the eligibility of Boston becoming a Royal Borough. Places have to be explicitly 

granted or confirmed the use of the title "royal" by royal charter, letters patent or similar instrument issued 

by the monarch. Since 1926 the entitlement to the title "royal borough" has been strictly enforced. 

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 3



REPORT 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 City status in the United Kingdom is granted by the monarch of the United Kingdom to a select group 

of communities: as of 2014, there are 69 cities in the United Kingdom – 51 in England, six in Wales, 

seven in Scotland and five in Northern Ireland. Although it carries no special rights, the status of city 

can be a marker of prestige and confer local pride. 

1.2 Other places intending on applying in 2021 include: Bangor, Irvine, Merthyr Tydfil, Oban, Guildford, 

Warrington, Southend-on-Sea, Newport, Reading, Dudley, Swindon, Medway, Wrexham and 

Middlesbrough. 

1.3 Boston Borough Council is working with partners to submit an application for the town to receive City 

Status as part of a competition launched to celebrate Her Majesty the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee next 

year. Letters of support have been received to date from Boston Police Station, Chestnut Homes, the 

Boston Town Deal Board, NHS CCG, Euroflow, Haven High, Boston College and the Coaching Inn 

Group. 

1.4 Boston’s City Status application supports the following priorities in Boston’s Corporate Strategy: 

1.5 Priority 1 – People Focussed: City Status will raise the profile of Boston as a place to live, visit and 

invest in. We will use it to work collaboratively to support improvements to the area’s connectivity, 

through transport and broadband. It will support Boston’s ambition to be a leading visitor destination 

by highlighting its wealth of heritage assets and worldwide connections, as well as building on its arts, 

culture and events opportunities.  

1.6 Priority 2 – Future Prosperity, Regeneration and Inclusive Growth: City Status for Boston will support 

the Town Investment Plan (Town Deal) and bolster the growth objectives as a regional sub-centre of 

the County – championing skills development and learning, supporting businesses, promoting trade 

and inward investment opportunities, and equipping Boston and its centre for the future (adapting 

to the changes on the high street and recovery from the Covid impact on retail, leisure and 

hospitality). 

1.7 Why apply? In June 2011, the BBC published an article - ‘Why do towns want to become cities?’ - 

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/magazine-13841482  

The article referenced Dr Steve Musson from the University of Reading and his research on the 

economic impact of city status. He stated: “Bidding for city status is often linked to bigger 

regeneration and promotion programmes that will continue in the future.” – 

https://www.reading.ac.uk/news-archive/press-releases/pr437981.html  

2.0 Application 

2.1 There are five parts to the application, which include a summary, an introduction highlighting why 

the area deserves city status, a profile of the area to incorporate statistics, up to 50 photographs of 

permanent features and a detailed map of the area showing the main tourist, leisure and 

entertainment sites and green spaces accessible to the public as well as the main transport routes. 

2.2 The first of two primary elements of the application will be on the summary – highlighting why the 

area deserves city status and include the following: 

• Distinct identity; 

• Civic pride; 

• Cultural infrastructure, interesting heritage, history and traditions 

• Vibrant and welcoming community; 

• Record of innovation; 

• Sound governance and administration; 

Page 52

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/magazine-13841482
https://www.reading.ac.uk/news-archive/press-releases/pr437981.html


• Associations with Royalty; and 

• Other particularly distinctive features, age, residents or communities who have made widely 

recognised significant contributions to society and cultural infrastructure. 

2.3 The second focus of the application is on the profile of the area, including statistics, to assist 

understanding of the area and its bid in comparison to the bids of other applicants. Information 

includes: 

• The resident population of the area; 

• Economic activity, including the number of people who work (but do not reside) in the area; 

• Information on public green spaces, sport and leisure facilities, and shopping centres; and 

• Information on local authority support (of any kind) for the voluntary sector. 

2.4 The strength of our bid in response to the focus of the application will arise from the following points: 

• Boston is a European melting pot for people and enterprise, it is an active port drawing on the 

historical traditions of England as global maritime nation. 

• In population terms Boston would fit comfortably within the family of small heritage cities using 

the population for the Built Up Area. Boston has a bigger population than: Lichfield, Ely, Truro, 

Ripon and Wells all of which are signature small heritage cities and it has a population which is 

on a par with Salisbury. 

• Boston is projected to grow rapidly in terms of its population. A growth from 2018 of 14% 

compared to a projected growth for England of 8.5% and Lincolnshire of 9%.  

• Boston has become home to a settled population of successful migrant workers and almost 50% 

(44.7) of live births in the area are to non UK born mothers. This puts the area much more on a 

par with other major city centres of enterprise such as London, Birmingham and Manchester 

and centres of learning such as Oxford and Cambridge (both of which have over 50% live births 

to non UK born mothers), than its hinterland. (ONS 2020). 

• The core driver for economic growth in Boston is food. Boston is an international food hub. For 

every one job in food processing in England there are 5 in Boston. There are now relatively few 

major settlements in England that are so strongly associated with one core industry which 

defines them in such a positive way. (BRES 2020). 

• Boston is a hard working town, we benchmarked Boston’s relative economic performance 

against the comparator towns based on its nearest local authority audit family group. 

• Moving onto physical characteristics, Boston has a nationally significant cluster of heritage 

buildings (590 in the town and its hinterland – Historic England 2021). These are testament to 

its history of once being the largest port in England and a key node in the Hanseatic League of 

pan European trading cities in the Middle Ages. Boston is also home to St Botolphs Church, 

which is the largest Parish Church in England. 

• Its recent success with funded initiatives include ‘Inclusive Boston’, the Towns Fund and 
Community Champions Fund, Townscape Heritage and Transported.  

• Boston is also the major service centre for the East of Lincolnshire. It has an acute hospital 

which serves a catchment of approaching 300,000 people. 

• Notwithstanding these strong points Boston does have significant deprivation and City Status 
would be a considerable spur to recognising and helping to build civic provide in overcoming a 
number of these challenges.  

• The level of deprivation, much of which is masked by Boston’s relatively modest population 
scale and isolated nature in an estuarine peripheral location in the East Midlands, is more 
comparable with core cities and very large towns than the hinterland of Boston. It again 
demonstrates the challenges on a relative scale which are more akin to a city than a rural town. 
There is a very wide literature which demonstrates how civic pride and external recognition can 
function as powerful drivers for addressing challenges of this level. 

 
  

Page 53



 
3.0 Resourcing 

3.1 Minimal budget requirement; the Government is asking local authorities to submit their entries in a 

standard size and format. This is intended to help local authorities minimise the expense of entering 

the competitions and to provide the Government with a fair basis for comparison and assessment of 

the entries received. 

3.2 Promotional activities can be integrated into existing contracts, including the Pride of Place work and 

the Town Deal PR and Communications support. 

3.3 Resource and information has been gathered from: 

o Support from the Communications team 

o Boston Town Deal Board 

o Social Change (Empowering Healthy Communities) and the Community Champion Network 

o Local Businesses 

o Transported, Boston BIG Local and Community Groups 

3.4 An internal project team was established and has met regularly to support the preparation of the bid 

and to enable communications and engagement.  

3.5 Planned communication/engagement commenced with Boston’s intention to apply for City Status.  

It was launched in July and was picked up by Lincolnshire Live: www.lincolnshirelive.co.uk/news/local-

news/town-boston-city-status-bid-5619983 

Further media coverage has included: 

https://www.itv.com/news/calendar/2021-09-14/calls-for-boston-to-become-lincolnshires-second-

city 

https://www.lincolnshirelive.co.uk/news/local-news/a-first-class-market-town-5684221  

https://thelincolnite.co.uk/2021/07/boston-city-council-preparing-bid-to-earn-city-status/ 

https://lincolnshiretoday.net/mag/boston-to-develop-bid-for-city-status/ 

A partnership approach to Boston’s application has utilised existing and established networks, 

including the Boston Town Deal Board, Boston Borough Council communications team and the 

Community Champion Network. 

4.0 Timeline 

4.1 Boston launched its intention to apply for City Status at the beginning of July: 

www.mybostonuk.com/boston-to-develop-bid-for-city-status-for-the-queens-platinum-jubilee 

4.2 Milestones: 

o Internal team ‘working group’ established – 20 June 2021 

o Group Leaders briefing – 24 August 2021 

o Boston Town Deal Board – 9 September 2021 

o Stakeholder Engagement – September/October 2021 

o Cabinet Briefing – 29 September 2021 

o Cabinet – 20 October 2021 

o Council– 22 November 2021 

4.3 End date: Application deadline is 8 December 2021. 

 

Page 54

http://www.lincolnshirelive.co.uk/news/local-news/town-boston-city-status-bid-5619983
http://www.lincolnshirelive.co.uk/news/local-news/town-boston-city-status-bid-5619983
https://www.itv.com/news/calendar/2021-09-14/calls-for-boston-to-become-lincolnshires-second-city
https://www.itv.com/news/calendar/2021-09-14/calls-for-boston-to-become-lincolnshires-second-city
https://www.lincolnshirelive.co.uk/news/local-news/a-first-class-market-town-5684221
https://thelincolnite.co.uk/2021/07/boston-city-council-preparing-bid-to-earn-city-status/
https://lincolnshiretoday.net/mag/boston-to-develop-bid-for-city-status/
http://www.mybostonuk.com/boston-to-develop-bid-for-city-status-for-the-queens-platinum-jubilee


 
5.0 CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 Inputs: Officer time and utilising existing information, resource and external contracts/partnerships. 

Activities: Stakeholder meetings, promotion at existing events, multi-media approach to PR and 
communications. 
 

5.2 Outputs/outcomes/intended impacts: Application for City Status for Boston submitted by the 
deadline of 8th December. Supporting Boston’s Corporate Strategy Priorities, as identified above. 

 
5.3 It is recommended that Councillor Richard Austin in consultation with Michelle Sacks have delegated 

responsibility to approve and submit the application for City Status by 8th December.  
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Minimal budget requirement; the Government is asking local authorities to submit their entries in a 

standard size and format, to help local authorities minimise the expense of entering the competitions and 

to provide the Government with a fair basis for comparison and assessment of the entries received. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

None arising from the report. 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None arising from the report.  

 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

None arising from the report. 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

None arising from the report. 

 

CONSULTATION 

 Group Leaders were briefed on 24 August 2021. 

 Cabinet Briefing took place on 29th September 2021. 

 Community Leaders Event on Monday 4th October 2021. 

 Boston Town Deal Board briefing on 13th October 2021. 

 

APPENDICES 

There are no appendices for this report. 

 

 

Page 55



 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used in the 

production of this report. 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Lydia Rusling, Assistant Director for Economic Growth 

Signed off by: Deputy Chief Executive (Growth) 

Approved for publication: Cllr Richard Austin 

 

Page 56



 

 

 

REPORT TO: COUNCIL 

DATE: 22 November 

SUBJECT: 

PURPOSE:  

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

To provide Council with an update on the progress of the Partnership in 

conclusion of the Setting the Foundations stage of the approved 

business case and to establish and recommend the key elements of the 

Set-Up stage for the Partnership. 

KEY DECISION: YES 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Cllr Paul Skinner, Leader of the Council 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Nathan Elvery, Joint Strategic Advisor 

Nathan Elvery, Joint Strategic Advisor 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

This report sets out the progress of the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership since the 

approval of the business case by the partner Councils: East Lindsey DC, 28 July 2021, South Holland 

DC, 29 July 2021 and Boston BC, 2 August 2021. Further, it sets out a series of recommendations to 

Council in support and to enable the successful achievement of the Set-Up stage for the strategic 

partnership for South and East Lincolnshire.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. To note the progress of the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership since approval 

by Council on the 2 August 2021.  

2. To approve the Work programme priorities for the South and East Lincolnshire Councils 

Partnership for the Set-Up stage as set out in Appendix A. 

3. To note the Performance framework and the frequency of performance reporting to Council 

for the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership as set out in Appendix B. 

4. To note the financial opportunities for the MTFS for each partnership Council to be 

developed as part of the budgeting setting process for each Council as set out in Appendix C. 

5. To note the governance framework for the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership 

and proposals for the scrutiny of the partnership on an annual basis. 

6. To approve the employment terms and conditions (including the pay structure) for the 

Integrated Shared Senior Management Team as set out in Appendix D.  

Page 57

Agenda Item 4



 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

The recommendations contained in this report support and enable the successful achievement of 

the Set-Up stage for the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership and build upon the 

progress already achieved from the Setting the Foundations stage as outlined in the approved 

business case. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

This report sets out the recommendations for the further development of the South and East 

Lincolnshire Councils Partnership in accordance with the approved business case and as such no 

alternative options have been considered given the commitment and support of each of the 

sovereign Councils to working in partnership with their partner Councils.  

 

1. BACKGROUND 

1.1 Boston Borough Council, East Lindsey District Council and South Holland District Council agreed 
the formation of a three-Council Partnership known as the South and East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership.  

 
1.2 The 1 October, Lincolnshire Day, marked the historic date for the ‘go-live’ of the Partnership. 

This has been achieved in less than two months from the Council decisions to approve the 
business case and is a huge achievement for all three partner Councils.  

 
1.3 This report sets out the progress of the Partnership to date and the next steps for the 

successful achievement of the Set-Up stage of the Partnership. 
 
2. REPORT 

2.1 This report sets out the progress of the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership to 
date and the next steps for the successful achievement of the Set-Up stage for the South and 
East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership. 

 
2.2 There are six recommendations contained within this report and this section of the report has 

been organised to provide information and background in support of each of the 
recommendations for Council, as follows: 

 

 Setting the Foundations. 

 Work Programme. 

 Performance Framework. 

 Financial Opportunities. 

 Governance Framework; and  

 Employment Terms and Conditions (including Pay). 
 
2.3 Each of the sections concludes with the recommendation being made to Council for ease of 

reference. 
 
 

Page 58



3. ‘SETTING THE FOUNDATIONS’ STAGE 

3.1 The business case for the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership identified and 
established four stages for building the partnership namely: 

 

 Setting the Foundations. 

 Set-Up. 

 Accelerate; and  

 Embed.  
 

3.2 The progress for the first stage, Setting the Foundations, is the focus on this section of the 
report and demonstrates the successful achievement of this stage of the Partnership’s 
development since the approval of the business case by Council on the 2 August 2021.  

 
3.3 The progress of the Setting the Foundations stage as identified by the key deliverables in the 

approved business case is set out in Table 1 below: - 
 

Table 1 – Building the Partnership: Setting the Foundation Stage  
 

Key Deliverable Progress 

Commitment to the new 
South and East Lincolnshire 
Councils Partnership 

All partner Councils approved the business case and decision to 
form the three-Council Partnership known as the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership. 
 
The partnership has successfully deployed an external and internal 
communications strategy through the formation of a partnership 
Communications and Engagement workstream. This has quickly 
established the Partnership’s identity both locally and nationally. 

Establish the Partnership 
relationship and profile with 
external partners 

In addition to the approved areas for building the partnership at 
this stage, the partnership has built external relationships and 
profile with a range of key external partners. 

Shared Chief Executive and 
Statutory Officers across the 
partnership Councils 

Council approved the appointment of a Joint Chief Executive and 
Head of Paid Services and the appointment of a Joint Monitoring 
Officer and Joint Section 151 Officer from 3 August 2021. 

Establish the Partnership 
with the wider staff cohort 
across the three partner 
Councils 

In addition to the approved areas for building the Partnership at 
this stage, the Partnership has established its identity across the 
staffing cohort within each of the three partnership Councils in 
support of the One Team philosophy for the Partnership. 

Establish a Stakeholder 
Group 

A Stakeholder Group has been established which includes the 
Leaders, Deputy Leaders and Finance Portfolio Holders, this group 
has provided political leadership and strategic direction on a 
weekly basis over the last two months since the approval of the 
business case. This has been key to the momentum and progress 
of the Partnership since the business case was approved by 
Council. 

Establish a Joint 
Appointments Panel 

A Joint Officer Employment Panel has been created which is 
advisory in nature and enables any decisions affecting any of the 
Councils to be made by their respective Employment 
Panel/Committee or Full Council, as appropriate. These decisions 
have been approved by Council as part of the Employment 
Committee and Other Constitutional Matters Reports presented by 
the Joint Monitor Officer for the Partnership.  

Appointment of shared 
officer team including T&C’s 
(where necessary) 

The Integrated Shared Senior Management Team has been 
appointed (Tiers 2 and 3) from the 1 October 2021 (Lincolnshire 
Day) following approval for the Joint Chief Executive and Head of 

Page 59



Paid Service to consult and implement the proposed structure as 
previously approved by Council.  
 
A subsequent consultation has taken place in relation to Terms and 
Conditions (including Pay) and forms part of the recommendations 
contained in this report for Council approval. This has been led by 
the Joint Strategic Advisor to ensure independence and to avoid 
any potential conflicts of interest which might otherwise arise.  

Establish legal basis 
including Memorandum of 
Agreement 

A Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between Boston Borough 
Council, East Lindsey District Council and South Holland District 
Council has been developed and signed (1 October 2021). This 
forms the basis for how the relationship between the partner 
Councils will be governed. Further details in relation to the 
supporting governance arrangements are set out in this report for 
Council to note and reference to the MOA is provided throughout 
this report to provide reassurance to all Members that the 
Partnership is fulfilling the responsibilities as agreed within the 
MOA. 

Establish Officer contact 
details for all Members and 
Partners 

A contact book has been developed and shared with all Members 
and Partners which sets out the Member and Officer portfolios. 
This also provides all Members with the officer contact details 
following the creation of the new officer structure for ease of 
reference.  
 
This contact book will be updated as and when appropriate for the 
benefit of all Members of the Partnership. 

Development of joint 
strategies 

The partnership has established a joint governance structure for 
the Partnership (referred to later in the report). Given the 
importance of our staff and our systems the first Boards, namely 
the Workforce/People Development Board and the Strategic ICT & 
Infrastructure Board are already in place across the partnership. 
These arrangements will bring forward partnership strategies in 
these key areas to support the aims and ambitions of the 
Partnership. 

NB – key deliverables included in the approved Business Case are shown in bold, additional deliverables have also been achieved during this 

stage. 

3.4 A scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance between Boston Borough Council and East Lindsey District 

Council has recently been undertaken (as committed to under the previous Memorandum of 

Agreement between the two Councils) and the observations and learning from this valuable 

exercise is shown in Table 2 below. Whilst it is important to acknowledge that the scrutiny was 

focussed on the Strategic Alliance there is undoubtedly a valuable learning influence for the 

newly created South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership. Therefore Table 2 identifies 

how the new Partnership will continue to grow and develop following ‘go live’ on the 1 October 

2021 and as it moves into the Set-Up stage of the Partnership’s development building upon 

this experience.  

Table 2 – Learning from the Strategic Alliance Scrutiny  
 

Key Area The Learning Influence 

That staff ‘snapshot’ surveys are reported to 
Overview / Scrutiny on a 6-monthly basis along 
with staff turnover figures, to monitor any 
significant changes. 

This will form part of the joint Workforce 
Development Strategy for the Partnership.  

Page 60



Review the ICT roadmap priorities and ensure 
that shared email addresses for officers is given 
the highest priority. 

This will form part of the joint ICT Strategy for 
the Partnership. 

To develop a shared strategy to ensure that 
staff are valued and given opportunities to 
progress, with a view to enhancing recruitment 
and retention. 

This will form part of the joint Workforce 
Development Strategy for the Partnership.  

To better communicate to staff, councillors, 
and residents any relevant updates or 
priorities, and to celebrate the successes across 
the alliance. 

A single communications strategy has been 
developed for the South and East Lincolnshire 
Councils Partnership and is regularly being 
shared internally for Members and Officers and 
forms part of the external communications 
strategy. 

To provide opportunities for more 
collaborative working for all councillors, such 
as scrutiny panels, project groups, and other 
shared opportunities across the alliance / 
partnership, especially where there is 
commonality, e.g., licensing and planning 
policy. 

The Memorandum of Agreement sets out the 
current governance arrangements for the 
Partnership. The opportunity has been 
identified for collaborative working for all 
Members under the terms of reference for the 
Stakeholder Group and the Joint Strategy 
Board.  

To provide an opportunity for councillors to 
visit partner districts to meet other councillors 
and gain an awareness of the ‘place’ of other 
districts. 

A programme will be established across the 
partnership Councils to support this objective 
and aligned to the priorities within the 
proposed Work Programme (Appendix A).  
 
An opportunity will be created for Members 
and Officers, as One Team, to ‘get to know each 
other’ across the Partnership. 

Move to an alignment of policies, e.g., 
procurement, climate change, and recycling. 

The Work Programme (Appendix A) of this 
report sets out a range of opportunities for the 
Partnership for approval by Council.  

To encourage the development of a strong 
sense of identity within the 3 areas of the 
alliance and the opportunities that they offer. 
This will help develop a sustainable, resilient, 
and vibrant economy and population. 

The Work Programme (Appendix A) and the 
supporting Performance Framework (Appendix 
B) have been designed to focus on the strategic 
opportunities for the sub-region and to provide 
a common purpose for the Partnership.  

To prepare a strategy so the partnership is fully 
prepared for the possibility of devolution. 

The Work Programme (Appendix A) has 
identified this area as one of the top ten 
strategic priorities for the Partnership.  

That the alliance should work together to 
lobby the government to ensure the financial 
sustainability of the IDBs on which the 
residents and the land of the 3 Councils heavily 
rely. 

The Work Programme (Appendix A) has 
identified this area as one of the top ten 
strategic priorities for the Partnership.  

To convene a shared scrutiny panel of the 3 
Councils in the new Partnership at the end of 
the first and second year, to undertake a 
review of the Partnership and merged 
workforce. 

This report proposes a joint annual scrutiny of 
the Partnership as part of the future 
governance arrangements of the Partnership 
based on the business case opportunities.  

 

3.5 Council is being asked to note the progress of the South and East Lincolnshire Councils 

Partnership since approval by Council on the 2 August 2021. 

 

 Page 61



4. WORK PROGRAMME 

4.1 The Memorandum of Agreement includes the following objectives of the South and East 

Lincolnshire Councils Partnership which are relevant to the Work Programme: 

• Acting together to develop, promote jointly and secure investment in strategic 
infrastructure that will benefit the three Council areas by assisting economic growth 
and regeneration, including, but not limited to roads, railways, flood defences and land 
drainage, educational, health and well-being infrastructure and acknowledging that 
East Lindsey District Council and Boston Borough Council have been awarded funding 
under the Towns Fund for Boston, Mablethorpe and Skegness.  

• To provide opportunity and ease the transition to more joint commissioning of services 
and sharing resources where a business case supports such a decision. 

• To provide more efficient and economical services to local people whilst maintaining or 
improving the quality of the services that are provided to them. 

• To provide an operating platform which may have relevance for future devolved powers 
and/or Local Government structures. 

 
4.2 This section of the report sets out the approach, formation, and development of the first Work 

Programme for the Partnership since the approval of the business case.  
 
4.3 In order to support the objectives of the Partnership, as outline above, a Work Programme, as 

shown in Appendix A has been developed for the following key reasons: - 
 

• To seek engagement, identify priorities and provide direction for Members and 
Officers. 

• To bring the Partnership to life. 
• To deliver on the business case outcomes, both financial and non-financial; and 
• To help direct and manage resources effectively and efficiently across the partnership. 

 
4.4 The Work Programme has been guided by the following key parameters: - 
 

• The Work Programme should have a short-, medium- and long-term focus. 
• Activity should range between operational and strategic aims and objectives. 
• The Work Programme should seek to benefit all partner Councils (including 

companies); and  
• An underlying key driver is the ambition to achieve more from the partnership by 

working together for all our communities.  
 
4.5 The Work Programme is set out in Strategic, Corporate and Local priorities based on the 

following simple but clear definitions across the newly formed structure of the Partnership: 
 

• Strategic – a focus on the priorities with our external partners within Lincolnshire and 
nationally. 

• Corporate – a focus on the priorities within the Partnership across the three 
partnership Councils; and  

• Local – a focus on the priorities for each of the sovereign Councils which are supported 
by the Partnership. 

 
4.6 The Partnership has established four new Directorates which support the delivery of the 

priorities contained within the Work Programme, for ease of reference the priorities are shown 

Page 62



by these Directorates and are accountable to the relevant Cabinet Member in each of the 
three partnership Councils in accordance with their portfolio responsibilities. 

 
4.7  Diagram 1 below shows the strategic priorities for the Partnership which are included within 

the over Work Programme as shown in Appendix A.  
 
Diagram 1 – Work Programme Extract (Appendix A) - Strategic Programme 

 

 
4.8 Council is being asked to approve the Work Programme priorities for the South and East 

Lincolnshire Councils Partnership for the Set-Up stage as identified in the approved business 
case.  

 
4.9 These priority areas will then be further developed for future decisions of the individual 

sovereign Councils through each Council’s own decision-making governance arrangements. 
 
4.10 Subject to the approval at Council of the proposed Work Programme a further refinement of 

the Financial Opportunities and Performance Framework will be required to support the 
achievement of these priorities.  

 

5. PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 

5.1 The Memorandum of Agreement includes the following objectives of the South and East 

Lincolnshire Councils Partnership which are relevant to the Performance Framework: 

• For each council individually to continue to exercise democratically accountable local 
government in their respective areas and have their own governance arrangements 
whilst sharing management of agreed internal and external services. 

• To provide more efficient and economical services to local people whilst maintaining or 
improving the quality of the services that are provided to them. 

 
5.2 This section of the report sets out the background for the development of the Performance 

Framework for the Partnership, the progress to date and the proposed Performance 
Framework for the Partnership.  

Page 63



 
5.3 It is important to establish a sound basis of performance reporting and performance 

management to enable the Partnership to achieve the scale and appetite of its collective 
ambition. In turn the performance culture of the Partnership should help identify and shape 
future policy direction and help to inform the longer-term priorities of the Partnership whilst 
managing the short-term progress and success for the Partnership in support of its local 
communities.  

 
5.4  Diagram 2 below shows the overview of the proposed Performance Framework for the 

Partnership which is included in more details as shown in Appendix B.  
 
Diagram 2 – Performance Framework Extract (Appendix B) - Strategic Programme 

 
 

 
 
5.5 An outline Performance Framework has been developed, as shown in Appendix B, which 

enables the regular reporting of the progress of the Partnership in the delivery of the proposed 
priorities for the Partnership, as shown in the Work Programme, and in turn will help to shape 
the future priorities for the Partnership. 

 
5.6 The proposed Performance Framework has been designed for the Partnership itself and not as 

a replacement any performance reporting arrangements within the sovereign Councils 
themselves. The Performance Framework has been designed to include the existing 
performance reporting within the partnership Councils. As the Partnership develops and forges 
a closer strategic alignment the opportunity clearly exists to have a single Performance 
Framework serving each Council and the Partnership. A focus on both sovereign Councils and 
separately the Partnership is seen as advantageous at this stage of the Partnership’s 
development and priority focus.  

 
5.7 It is proposed that the Partnership reports on a six-monthly cycle to Council, covering the 

periods April to September and October to March. It is envisaged, that subject to the approval 
of the Work Programme contained in this report that the first performance report will be made 
in Quarter 1 2022/23 for the Partnership.  

Page 64



 
5.8 As the Work Programme has yet to be approved there is a recognised further need to develop 

the Performance Framework for the Partnership.  
 
5.9 Council is being asked to note the Performance Framework and the frequency of performance 

reporting to Council for the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership. 
 
6. FINANCIAL OPPORTUNITIES 

6.1 The Memorandum of Agreement includes the following objectives of the South and East 

Lincolnshire Councils Partnership which are relevant to the Financial Opportunities: 

• To provide opportunity and ease the transition to more joint commissioning of services 
and sharing resources where a business case supports such a decision. 

• To provide more efficient and economical services to local people whilst maintaining or 
improving the quality of the services that are provided to them. 

• To make financial savings to the combined staffing costs of the existing management 
structures.  

 
6.2 The business case demonstrated a financial opportunity of up to £42m available to the 

Councils collectively over the next ten-year period through partnership working if all 
opportunities to integrate services are fully embraced. Exploring wider service integration, 
where it makes sense to do so, will reduce pressure on the Councils’ budgets in the years 
ahead whilst also creating capacity to invest in local priorities to achieve better outcomes for 
local communities within the South and East of Lincolnshire. 

 
6.3 Each of the partnership Councils will be able to more robustly respond to the financial 

challenge each council faces, since the loss of grant funding, through the opportunities 
available through partnership working and in turn will be able to realign resources to better 
impact and influence the key services and outcomes for local communities across the 
partnership. The opportunity to save and invest in priorities is a significant opportunity for the 
Partnership.    

 
6.4 This section of the report sets out the benefits which are available to the Partnership as per 

Diagram 3 and the proposed programme of service review opportunities for the Partnership 
which will be taken forward as part of the budget setting process for each Council and to 
support the achievement of the MTFS for each council. 

 
  

Page 65



Diagram 3 – Business Case Extract – Opportunities & Benefits 
 

 
 
6.5 The financial opportunities which could form part of the budget considerations of each of the 

Partnership Councils, based on the original business case which scoped the ‘controllable 
service expenditure’ of each of the Partnership Councils, is set out in Appendix C.  

 
6.6 The phasing of these financial opportunities will be influenced by the Work Programme 

timeframes, subject to the approval of the Work Programme by Council. These opportunities 
will then be brought for approval within each sovereign council as part of each Council’s own 
decision-making governance arrangements. 

 
6.7 Council is being asked to note the financial opportunities for the MTFS for each Partnership 

Council to be developed as part of their budgeting setting process and through each Council’s 
own decision-making governance arrangements.  

 
7. GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

7.1 The Memorandum of Agreement includes the following objectives of the South and East 

Lincolnshire Councils Partnership which are relevant to the Governance Framework: 

• For each council individually to continue to exercise democratically accountable local 
government in their respective areas and have their own governance arrangements 
whilst sharing management of agreed internal and external services. 

 
7.2 The objectives of the partnership are clearly set out in the Memorandum of Agreement and 

are reference in this report in paragraphs 4.1, 5.1, 6.1 and 7.1. To support the achievement of 
these objectives requires a clearly defined governance framework for the Partnership. This is 
shown, for ease of reference, in Diagrams 4 and 5 below. 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 66



Political Governance Framework 
 
7.3 The political governance framework for the Partnership consists of: 
 

 Joint Strategy Board - will be held to consider matters of interest, opportunities for 
joint working and any potential further joint working of the three partnership Councils. 

 Stakeholder Group - which is responsible for overseeing strategic direction and 
assurance and monitoring of the programme across organisation, ensuring the 
programme delivers to agreed strategic objectives as set by the Joint Strategy Board.  

 Joint Portfolio Holder - meetings will support the objectives of the Joint Strategy Board 
and the progress of the programme overseen by the Stakeholder Group. 

 

Diagram 4 – Partnership Governance Diagram (Political) 
 

 
 

7.4 All decisions associated with the Partnership will be taken within the constitutional decision-
making arrangements for each of the sovereign Councils. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 67



Joint Scrutiny & Overview 
 
7.5 The function of scrutiny within each of the partner Councils plays an important and key role 

within the overall governance arrangements for each of the partnership Councils and for the 
Partnership as a whole.  

 
7.6 The approved business case demonstrated the opportunities for the South and East 

Lincolnshire Councils Partnership as: 
 

• the ability to work together to respond to and address shared and common 
challenges and opportunities at a local, corporate, and sub-regional level across 
the southeast region of Lincolnshire. 

• to realise a combined financial opportunity of up to £42m if all service integration 
opportunities are embraced. 

• to build on the existing and successful PSPS Ltd relationship and improve service 
effectiveness and efficiency. 

• an opportunity to improve service delivery and resilience across the Partnership. 
• the sharing of expertise across the Partnership. 
• the chance to create additional capacity and increased resilience to do more for 

our communities. 
• a stronger voice locally, regionally, and nationally through the creation of a South 

and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership identity. 
• to cement a solid foundation of partnership working ahead of the potential for 

devolution and local reform.  
• the increased opportunity to secure external funding to enable the future 

prosperity for our communities; and 
• greater career development opportunities for our workforce. 

 
7.7 It is proposed that progress on these identified opportunities form the basis of an annual joint 

scrutiny of the Partnership.  
 
7.8  In addition to the above proposal the annual scrutiny would provide an opportunity for any 

additional areas that the scrutiny chairperson might wish to jointly consider recognising the 
strategic ambition and aims and objectives of the partnership overall.  

 
7.9 It is proposed that the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee consists of the Scrutiny 

Committee Chairman, Vice Chairman and one additional Scrutiny Member from each of the 
partnership Councils.  

 
Local Government Association (LGA) 

 
7.10 The Partnership has been in regular contact with the Local Government Association in 

recognition of the importance that the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership 
provides for the future of Local Government as a whole and in turn the support which can be 
provided by the LGA to ensure the future success of the Partnership. 

 
7.11 As part of this on-going relationship the LGA will be working with the Partnership to undertake 

a Peer Review early in the New Year. This opportunity will help to provide Members with 
further reassurance as progress is made in the Set-Up stage for the Partnership and will 
undoubtedly offer additional insight and recommendations for the future success of the 
Partnership. 

 
Page 68



 Officer Governance Framework 
 
7.12 In support of the political governance framework for the Partnership is the officer governance 

framework, this is designed to ensure the strategic objectives of the Partnership are effectively 
co-ordinated, delivered and achieved across the partnership Councils whilst at the same time 
ensuring these arrangements support the individual needs of the sovereign Councils. 

 
7.13 The officer governance framework for the partnership consists of the following Partnership 

based boards as set out in Diagram 5 below. These boards are overseen by the Senior 
Leadership Team and co-ordinated through the Partnership structure via the Corporate 
Management Team, Directorate, Assistant Director and Senior Managers meetings throughout 
the Partnership.  

 
Diagram 5 – Partnership Governance Diagram (Officers) 

 

 
 
7.14 Council is being asked to note the governance framework for the South and East Lincolnshire 

Councils Partnership and proposals for the scrutiny of the Partnership on an annual basis. 

8. EMPLOYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (INCLUDING PAY) 

8.1 The Memorandum of Agreement includes the following objectives of the South and East 

Lincolnshire Councils Partnership which are relevant to employment terms and conditions 

(including pay) of the Integrated Shared Senior Management Team of the partnership: 

• To provide adequate capacity and resilience to the three Councils so that they are 
individually and collectively better able to deliver on their priorities to local people. 

• To create greater opportunities for the Partnership’s workforce to develop their careers. 
 
8.2 The approved business case highlighted the requirement to review the employment terms and 

conditions (including pay) of the proposed shared officer team for the South and East 

Lincolnshire Councils Partnership in Section 2 – Building the Partnership. In establishing the 

Integrated Shared Senior Management Team, it is important to ensure the future resilience of 

the team in terms of retention and providing greater opportunities for both the existing team 

and for the future recruitment needs of the Partnership. This is fundamental to the future 

success of the Partnership.  

Page 69



8.3 This section of the report sets out the proposals for employment terms and conditions 

(including pay) for the Integrated Shared Senior Management Team. 

8.4 It has been important as part of the creation of the Integrated Shared Management Team 
arrangement that a review of the employment terms and conditions (including pay) has been 
undertaken to ensure that there is parity of pay for those undertaking the same or similar roles 
within the arrangements of the three partnership Councils. Ensuring that there is parity in the 
pay, terms and conditions will support the recruitment and retention aims and ambitions of 
the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership whilst reducing the risk of any issues 
associated with a disparity of pay and/or terms and conditions of employment across the three 
partnership Councils.  

 
8.5 All three partner Councils have achieved significant savings from the opportunity of integrating 

a shared senior management arrangement. Table 3 below shows the original baseline (as 
separate Councils) of the cost of the senior management compared to the projected cost 
inclusive of the recommendations contained in this report. This equates to a 22.22% saving 
across the integrated shared senior management team. This has made better use of limited 
resources and has placed all Councils in a stronger position to develop other shared roles or 
services that could make further efficiencies and improvements.  

 
Table 3 – Senior Management Team savings 

Senior Management Team £ 

Original baseline cost  2,094,493 

South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership 1,629,078 

Total 465,415 
NB – S&ELCP figures are based on salaries excluding on costs based on the proposals within this report. 

NB – Original baseline cost figures are the total cost of the senior management teams prior to partnership arrangements.  

8.6 The cumulative benefit of the senior management team integration over a ten-year period is 
£4.65 million as set out in Diagram 6 below.  
 
Diagram 6 – cumulative benefit over a ten-year period  

 

 
 
  

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10

C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
 S

av
in

gs
 £

Year

Savings for Integrated Shared Senior Management Team

Baseline S&ELCP

Page 70



Pay Structure 
 
8.7 There are currently three different pay structures in place across the three partnership 

Councils and there is a significant disparity between the earning capacities across the existing 
pay structures within the three partnership Councils. The recommendation contained in this 
report is for a single pay structure for the Integrated Shared Senior Management Team for the 
Partnership which addressed the issues and opportunities outlined in the paragraphs above. 

 
8.8 A nationally based benchmarking exercise has been completed to review the pay structures 

for comparable1 council partnerships with a view to setting a competitive remuneration 
package which seeks to both retain high performing employees, whilst ensuring it is 
sufficiently attractive to attract high calibre candidates if it becomes necessary. 

 
8.9 There is a need to address the immediate issue of disparity in pay between the three partner 

Councils and to bring the remuneration for these roles in line from the start of the Integrated 
Shared Senior Management Team arrangement. It is therefore recommended that each 
sovereign council, as part of the Partnership, adopt the existing South Holland District Council 
pay structure from 1 October 2021, as set out in Appendix D.  

 
8.10 The net on-going saving from the integration of the shared senior management team across 

the South and East Lincolnshire Council Partnership is £465,415 and is the equivalent of a 
reduction of 22.22% compared to the baseline senior team arrangements of the individual 
Councils prior to any partnership arrangements.  

 
8.11 The employment terms and conditions (including pay) is applicable to the Council approved 

posts within the Integrated Shared Senior Management which are covered by Section 113 (1) 
of the Local Government Act 1972 which provides that a local authority may enter into an 
agreement with another local authority for the placing at the disposal of the latter for the 
purposes of their functions, on such terms as may be provided by the agreement, the services 
and officers employed by the former. An officer placed by one local authority at the disposal of 
another remains employed by the first local authority. 

 
8.12 Any future proposals for shared arrangements under Section 113 of the Local Government Act 

1972 will be in accordance with the Memorandum of Agreement, section 6, paragraph 6.2 
which will require the preparation of a business case for approval through each Council’s own 
decision-making governance arrangements. 

 
8.13 Council is being asked to approve the employment terms and conditions (including the pay 

structure) for the Integrated Shared Senior Management Team as set out in Appendix D.  
 

Employment Terms and Conditions 

8.14 Parity for the employment terms and conditions is equally as important as the pay parity in 
aligning the contractual basis of employment for the Integrated Shared Senior Management 
Team.  

 
8.15 A review of the current employment terms and conditions across the three partnership 

Councils has been completed and identified differences in all areas within the current terms 
and conditions of employment. 

 

                                            
1 This is a unique partnership of three Councils and comparisons have been focussed to two council partnerships.  Page 71



8.16 It is important that at the start of the Integrated Shared Senior Management Team 
arrangements these employment terms and conditions are aligned across the three 
partnership Councils. The approach which has been adopted to resolve this has been to review 
and recommend the best aspects of each individual sovereign council’s current employment 
terms and conditions and to provide a new package which reflects the best of all three 
partnership Councils to support the retention and recruitment for the Partnership. 

 
8.17 Council is being asked to approve the employment terms and conditions (including the pay 

structure) for the Integrated Shared Senior Management Team as set out in Appendix D.  
 
9. CONCLUSION 

9.1 Significant progress has been made since the approval of the Business Case for the South and 
East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership. This report sets out this progress and the basis of the 
future success of the Partnership’s next stage, the Set-Up stage, to maintain this successful 
momentum and to ensure the Partnership can positively impact on the lives of all communities 
within South and East Lincolnshire.  

 
10. EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

10.1 This report supports the aims and ambitions of the South and East Lincolnshire Council’s 
Partnership which are contained in the main body of the report.  

 
11. IMPLICATIONS 

12. SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

12.1 This report focusses on the progress and next stage for the Partnership which are contained in 
the main body of the report.  

 
13. CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

13.1 The formation of the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership supports the corporate 
priorities of the sovereign Councils. This will be reflected in the Annual Delivery Plans to be 
presented to a future Council meeting for approval.  

 
14. STAFFING 

14.1 Recommendations for the employment terms and conditions (including pay) of the Integrated 
Shared Senior Management Team are set out in the main body of this report and included as 
Appendix D.  

 
14.2 Staff and Unions have been fully consulted in relation to the proposed recommendations.  
 
15. CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

15.1 The constitutional changes and arrangements for the successful implementation of Partnership 
have been approved by all three partner Councils as part of the Setting the Foundations stage 
of building the Partnership.  

 
16. DATA PROTECTION 

16.1 The Partnership shares information and data once suitable data protection arrangements for 
the partnership have been established. 

 
Page 72



17. FINANCIAL 

17.1 The business case demonstrated that there is a financial opportunity of up to £42m available 
to the Councils collectively over the next ten-year period through partnership working if all 
opportunities to integrate services are fully embraced by each of the sovereign Councils within 
the Partnership. Exploring wider service integration where it makes sense to do so will reduce 
pressure on the Councils’ budgets in the challenging financial years ahead whilst also creating 
capacity to invest in local priorities to achieve better outcomes for local communities within 
the South and East of Lincolnshire. 

 
17.2 The financial implications associated with the recommendation for terms and conditions 

(including pay) are set out below. 
 
17.3 In respect of the recommended pay structure proposals there is a financial implication of 

£23,842 for the period 2021/22, this excludes assumptions regarding associated on costs and 
staff within the LGPS pension scheme. The full year cost would be £47,684 per annum. This 
should be considered against the financial risk and reputational damage of not achieving pay 
parity across the Partnership.  

 
17.4 The cost of the pay parity and equalisation of pay across the South and East Lincolnshire 

Councils Partnership would be shared in accordance with the agreed percentage ratios and 
thus provides the most economic means to address the issue and opportunity as per Table 4 
below. 

 
Table 4 – 2021/22 Pay parity and equalisation for the S&ELCP Integrated Shared Senior Management Team 

 £ BBC 
23% 

ELDC 
46% 

SHDC 
31% 

Total 103,659 23,842 47,683 32,134 
NB - Figures are based on salaries excluding on costs to be consistent with Business Case. 

NB – Figures are based on 6 months for the period 1st October 2021 to 31st March 2022.  

17.5 The cost per individual post per partner Council within the Integrated Shared Senior 
Management Team is shown in Table 5 below, this demonstrates a cost-effective method of 
achieving the aim of pay parity whilst ensuring the recruitment and retention offer from the 
partnership remains competitive.  

 
Table 5 – 2022/23 Pay parity and equalisation cost per individual post shared across the S&ELCP 

 Chief 
Executive 

£ 

Deputy Chief 
Executive 

£ 

Assistant 
Director 

£ 

Boston Borough Council 4,871 1,106 2,953 
NB - Figures are based on salaries excluding on costs to be consistent with Business Case. 

NB – Figures are based on 12 months for the period 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023.  

17.6 There are opportunities to finance these costs in 2021/22 from in-year underspends and/or carry 
forwards from the previous year. Looking forward into 2022/23 these costs will form part of the 
budget setting process within each of the sovereign Councils. 

 
17.7 This report is not seeking approval for the identified financial opportunities as these will be 

considered within the budget setting arrangements for each partnership council and through 
each Council’s own decision-making governance arrangements.  

 
 

Page 73



18. RISK MANAGEMENT 

18.1 This report makes recommendations in relation to the terms and conditions (including pay) for 
the Integrated Shared Senior Management Team. These recommendations are made to 
address the risk of pay equality and parity across the Partnership which currently exists.  

 
19. STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

19.1 Staff and Unions have been fully consulted in relation to the proposed recommendations in 
relation to the recommended employment terms and conditions (including pay) of the 
Integrated Shared Senior Management Team.  

 
20. REPUTATION 

20.1 The South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership has established a positive reputation 
through the progress it has achieved in the Setting the Foundations stage of the Partnership. 
The recommendations included in this report, to support the Set-Up stage, are designed to 
maintain momentum and continue to build the Partnership and its reputation. 

 
21. CONTRACTS 

21.1 Included within the Work Programme are opportunities for the Partnership which are achieved 
through a strategic focus on procurement. This will identify opportunities across the 
Partnership in relation to existing and new contracts.  

 
22. CRIME AND DISORDER 

22.1 The Work Programme proposes the development of a Community Strategy for the Partnership 
which will incorporate Crime and Disorder.  

 
23. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

23.1  None 
 
24. HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

24.1 The Work Programme proposes the develop of a Health and Wellbeing Strategy for the 
Partnership. 

 
25. CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

25.1 A Climate Change Strategy is being developed for the Partnership.  
 
26. ACRONYMS 

26.1 None 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 74



APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Work Programme 

APPENDIX B Performance Framework 

APPENDIX C Financial Opportunities 

APPENDIX D Employment Terms and Conditions (including Pay) for the Integrated Shared Senior 

Management Team 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document 

title 

South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Business Case 

Where 

document 

can be 

viewed 

https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s12785/Appendix%20A%20-

%20Business%20Case%20including%20proposed%20structure%20for%20consultation.pdf 

 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. This is being reported directly 

to Council to engage all Members. 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Nathan Elvery, Joint Strategic Advisor 

Signed off by: Nathan Elvery, Joint Strategic Advisor 

Approved for publication: Cllr Paul Skinner, Leader of the Council 

 

 

Page 75

https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s12785/Appendix%20A%20-%20Business%20Case%20including%20proposed%20structure%20for%20consultation.pdf
https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s12785/Appendix%20A%20-%20Business%20Case%20including%20proposed%20structure%20for%20consultation.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP

APPENDIX A - WORK PROGRAMME
Final Version 1.0 

1

P
age 77



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership - Introduction

2

The Councils need to agree a Work Programme for the following key reasons:-

• To seek engagement, identify priorities and provide direction for Members and Officers;

• To bring the partnership to life;

• To deliver on the business case outcomes, both financial and non-financial; and

• To help direct and manage resources effectively and efficiently across the partnership.

Guiding parameters for the development of the Work Programme:-

• The Work Programme should have a short, medium and long term focus;

• Activity should range between operational and strategic aims and objectives;

• The Work Programme should seek to benefit all partner councils (including companies); and 

• An underlying key driver is the ambition to achieve more from the partnership by working 

together for all our communities.  

P
age 78



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition 

3

Strategic 
Ambition

• Strategic – a focus on 
the priorities with 
our external partners 
within Lincolnshire 
and nationally;

• Corporate – a focus 
on the priorities 
within our 
partnership across 
the three 
partnership councils 
(including 
companies); and 

• Local – a focus on 
the priorities for 
each of our 
sovereign councils.

• Markets
• Local Plan Development
• Community Safety 

Partnership
• Waste collection & 

recycling
• Public Protection

• Planning
• Monitoring Officer
• Data Protection
• Democratic Services
• S151 Officer
• Finance Strategy
• Financial Management
• Treasury Management
• Sundry Debtors

Strategic Ambition

Corporate 
Priorities

Local Priorities

P
age 79



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Programme 

4

Strategic 
Programme

• The following slides 
identify the 
opportunities for the 
partnership building 
upon the existing 
corporate priorities 
for each sovereign 
council and the 
departmental 
structure of the 
partnership.

• This slide highlights 
the strategic 
opportunities for the 
partnership.

The Strategic Programme (Top Ten) for the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership:-

1. Strategy platform for the Partnership focussing on improving outcomes for all communities across the sub-region (early 

focus on Transport and Infrastructure and Health & Wellbeing);

2. The strategic case for Devolution for the sub-region; 

3. Piloting opportunities with Government (Levelling Up Agenda – Education and Skills, Housing, Health);

4. Place-based regeneration, including supporting infrastructure, across the sub-region of South and East Lincolnshire;

5. Joint partnership approach to the Internal Drainage Boards;

6. Co-ordinated partnership response to the Environmental Bill;

7. Health and Leisure offer across the sub-region;

8. Shared Service Opportunities across the partnership, including our strategic partnership with PSPS Ltd, to improve service 

efficiency and effectiveness;

9. Workforce Development Strategy for the partnership; and

10. ICT Strategy for the partnership.

P
age 80



5

Partnership Priorities

Growth 
Directorate

• Economic Growth

• Strategic Growth and 
Development

• Planning and 
Strategic 
Infrastructure

S&ELCP – Growth Directorate

Priority Planned Programme

Strategic • Partners: Education/Skills – College, University and Schools, Chamber of Commerce, Strategy and actions for tackling deprivation (Local Levelling Up), 

Regional Developer relationships, Library of Business cases for desired Economic growth projects, Approach to working with Internal Drainage Boards and 

Environment Agency, FEZ, LEP and LCC, Ambitious and Inclusive Growth.

• Government: Seek Government Pilot Status for Education and Skills in the sub-regional geography, Level Up Funding Requirements – Infrastructure, Skills & 

Education, Jobs, Successful Levelling Up bids/programmes.

Corporate • Policy Alignment: Investment Prospectus, Income Generation Strategy, Economic & Growth Strategy, Tourism/Destination Strategy, Local Plan, Transport & 

Infrastructure Strategy, Education & Skills Strategy, Energy Strategy. 

• Quick Wins: Align vital and viable programmes of delivery across Partnership, Levelling Up Bid for SHDC, Delivering of outcomes for the Town Centre groups 

for Holbeach and Spalding.  

• Shared Services: Economic Development, Planning. 

• Shared Learning: Securing external funding, Tourism development, Business support, Heritage expertise.

• Partnership Platform: Expansion of commercial venture, Existing Company platforms, Commercial Land, House building programme, Housing Companies, 

Energy.

• Back Office Alignment: 

• Asset Rationalisation: 

• Procurement:

Local ELDC - Towns Fund – Mablethorpe and Skegness, Skegness Foreshore Master Plan, Further Education opportunities in Louth.

BBC - Towns Fund, Port Expansion.

SHDC – Grants4Growth programme, Open for Business initiative.

P
age 81



6

Partnership Priorities

Communities 
Directorate

• Well Being and 
Communities 
Leadership

• Regulatory

• Leisure and Culture

• Neighbourhoods

S&ELCP – Communities Directorate

Priority Planned Programme

Strategic • Partners: Establish new working relationships with Key partners, Strategy and actions for tackling deprivation (Local Levelling Up), Early Help collaboration, 

Voluntary Sector. 

• Government: Approach to implementing the Environment Bill.

Corporate • Policy Alignment: Community Strategy, Environment Strategy, Leisure & Culture Strategy, Health and Wellbeing Strategy, Housing Strategy, Homelessness 

Strategy, Climate Change Strategy.

• Quick Wins: Outdoor spaces and new woodlands initiative, Homelessness Prevention, Improve access to leisure provision. 

• Shared Services: Climate Change team, Health & Safety – Policy and Practice, Land Charges, Single Leisure and Culture operator, Single Waste Service, Public 

Protection & Regulatory Services, Emergency Planning & Business Continuity, Waste Collection, Street Cleaning, Grounds Maintenance, Fleet Maintenance, 

Environmental Management, Leisure and Culture, Building Control, DFG Advice, Approval and Administration.

• Shared Learning: Rough Sleeping, Behavioural Insights, Recovery from Covid-19; Diverse community integration, Healthy lifestyles programmes, Carbon 

reduction, Wellbeing Service – Wellbeing Lincs, Safeguarding, Housing Advice and Support, ‘Affordable Warmth’ – Energy Efficiency, Housing Support Fund, 

Out of Hours contracts, Resettlement Scheme. 

• Partnership Platform: Market Town development initiative, Magna Vitae, Community Reserve Loan Scheme for Parishes. 

• Back Office Alignment: 

• Asset Rationalisation: Office/Depot space.

• Procurement: Leisure Facilities.

Local ELDC - Establish a Commercial Waste Service, Magna Vitae Leisure and Culture, Implement new Trust, Community Hub Service Access Model, Delivery of 3G 
pitch in Louth (subject to funding), Deploy BEIS Green Homes Funding, Aging Better Programme, New learning facility in Skegness, New Leisure and Learning 
Centre in Mablethorpe.

BBC - Delivery the Empowering Healthier Communities Programme, Deploy BEIS Green Homes Funding. 

SHDC – Leisure facilities, Pride in South Holland Programme. 

P
age 82



7

Partnership Priorities

Corporate 
Development 
Directorate

• Corporate

• Governance

• Finance

• Housing

S&ELCP – Corporate Development Directorate

Priority Planned Programme

Strategic • Partners: Establish new working relationships with Key partners, Target service growth into areas of priority, Partnership Expansion, Drainage Board Levy –

taking forward the financial challenge

• Government: Devolved functions, Structural Reform.

Corporate • Policy Alignment: Workforce Development Strategy, ICT Strategy, Medium Term Financial Strategy, Procurement Strategy, Customer Strategy. 

• Quick Wins: Early efficiency opportunities, Funding and recruitment of additional funding officer post, Review areas of ‘big expenditure, alignment of 

workforce training plans.

• Shared Services: Expansion of existing shared team opportunities across the partnership including PSPS Ltd; Legal, Democratic Services, Performance, Risk 

Management, Internal & External Audit, Contracts and Procurement, Communications, Elections and facilitating Transformation.

• Shared Learning: Communications, Organisational Development, Housing management and delivery.

• Partnership Platform: Develop business cases to explore back office service opportunities with PSPS Ltd, Performance Management, Develop the customer 

experience through the use of new technologies, Transformation Plan – an order for planned and opportunistic service reviews, New ways of working with 

partner organisations, Explore opportunities for constitutional alignment.

• Back Office Alignment: Treasury Management and Investment Strategy, All three Councils ICT brought up to the same standard to enable collaboration, 

Single telephony system, Continued deployment of Microsoft 365 functionality, Single customer service system.

• Asset Rationalisation:  Assisting services in consideration of the  various opportunities and potential delivery models

• Procurement:  Significant opportunity to drive efficiencies and savings through aligned procurement strategies and policies

Local ELDC - Deliver new Case Management System, Improve digital service access for residents.

BBC - Continue to deliver improvements to the ICT environment, Improve digital service access for residents, Develop new BBC website.

SHDC - Improve digital service access for residents, Sheltered Housing Review. 

P
age 83



8

Partnership Priorities

Programme 
Delivery 

Directorate

• Strategic Projects

• General Fund Assets

• Strategic Growth and 
Development

S&ELCP – Programme Delivery Directorate

Priority Planned Programme

Strategic • Partners: Establish new working relationships with Key partners inc. statutory bodies, Regional and local developers and contractors, Market intelligence and 

good/ best practice in design, procurement, delivery.

• Government: Grant sourcing, Regional and national engagement on delivery of delivery of projects. 

Corporate • Policy Alignment: Assets & Property Strategy, including  corporate asset management, maintenance programme and purchase and sale of surplus land, 

Housing Building Strategy.

• Quick Wins: Delivery of key capital works, Planned maintenance and construction projects, Recruitment for complex delivery, Securing additional government 

funding for Changing Places.

• Shared Services: Cash Collection Car Parks, Property, Assets and Facilities Management, Planned Maintenance, Caretaking, Project delivery.

• Shared Learning: Home building, Contractor engagement, Contractor procurement, Technical services, Design and operation of assets, Disposal and 

acquisition, Project assurance, Data management. 

• Partnership Platform: Expansion of commercial ventures, Commercial land, Welland Homes, Invest East Lindsey Limited, Housing delivery, Construction and 

professional services frameworks.

• Back Office Alignment: Single approach to programme management, Contractor procurement/engagement, Design standards, Project management including 

risk and contract management including dispute resolution.

• Asset Rationalisation: Asset rationalisation programme across the partnership, including office accommodation and options, purchase and procurement of 

key sites.

• Asset Investment and Portfolio building : Refresh of key investment criteria and prudent reinvestment, Off market transaction option, Review approach to 

planned maintenance.

• Procurement: Commonality and consistency of approach, social value maximisation. 

Local
ELDC - Delivery of Public Sector Hub at Horncastle and new office base in Skegness and disposal of Tedder Hall and Skegness Town Hall, Towns Fund Project & 
Levelling Up Delivery, Establish a new illuminations offer on the coast, Capitalise on the contribution potential of Invest East Lindsey, Agree and deliver a 
sustainable model for Kingfisher Caravan Park, Complete programme of community asset transfers, Changing Places and public conveniences upgrades.

BBC - Towns Fund Project and Levelling Up Delivery, Review key operating leases, Changing Places and public conveniences upgrades.

SHDC – Spalding and Holbeach Town Centres, Food Enterprise Zone delivery in partnership, Options for investment in operational assets, Housing delivery, 
Capital schemes, Commercial properties estate management and investment, Changing Places and public conveniences upgrades.

P
age 84



DRAFT DOCUMENT

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP

APPENDIX B – PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK
Final Draft Version 1.0 

1

P
age 85



DRAFT DOCUMENT

South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership - Introduction

2

Summary of Performance Progress

• ADD overall summary of performance progress

Rob Barlow
Joint Chief Executive – S&ELCP

P
age 86



DRAFT DOCUMENT

South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership - Recommendations

3

Recommendations

The following are recommended to support our aspirations for our partnership:-

1. ADD

Rob Barlow
Joint Chief Executive – S&ELCP

P
age 87



DRAFT DOCUMENT

SECTION 1: STRATEGIC AMBITION

4

P
age 88



DRAFT DOCUMENT

South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition 

5

Strategic Ambition

This section of performance 
report sets out the Strategic 
Ambition of the partnership, the 
priorities for the sub-region on 
behalf of all local communities 
served by the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership.

To achieve the Strategic 
Ambition will require working in 
partnership with a range of 
partnerships within Lincolnshire 
and more widely. 

• Markets
• Local Plan Development
• Community Safety 

Partnership
• Waste collection & 

recycling
• Public Protection

• Health & Safety
• HR & OD
• Legal
• ICT
• Internal & External 

Audit
• Risk Management
• Customer Insight & 

Services

• Planning
• Monitoring Officer
• Data Protection
• Democratic Services
• S151 Officer
• Finance Strategy
• Financial Management
• Treasury Management
• Sundry Debtors

Strategic Ambition

Corporate 
Priorities

Local Priorities

P
age 89



DRAFT DOCUMENT

South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Strategic Ambition

6

Strategic Ambition

A new strategic partnership has 
the opportunity to make a real 
and tangible difference to the 
outcomes for local communities 
and local places.

The Indices of Multiple 
Deprivation will be used as a 
baseline to monitor progress for 
the Strategic Ambition of the 
South and East Lincolnshire 
Councils Partnership.

IMD indicators local authority ranking for the proposed partnership (1-317)

Indicator South Holland Boston East Lindsey

Income 140 92 42

Employment 140 85 25

Education, Skills & Training 9 1 28

Health & Disability 171 113 53

Crime 285 237 247

Living Environment 228 135 85

Barriers to Housing & Services 123 180 137

Local Authority Rank 144 85 30

IMD indicators strategic priorities for proposed alliance

Indicator South Holland Boston East Lindsey

Income 3 3 3

Employment 3 2 1

Education, Skills & Training 1 1 2

Health & Disability 5 4 4

Crime 7 7 7

Living Environment 6 5 5

Barriers to Housing & Services 2 6 6

P
age 90



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Income Deprivation  

7

Strategic Ambition

Income

The measures identified on this 
slide support this deprivation 
domain and therefore provide a 
baseline to monitor progress.

A number of areas of focus have 
been identified where the 
S&ELCP can make a positive 
difference.

There are 7 domains of 
deprivation, which combine to 
create the Index of Multiple 
Deprivation, the Income 
Deprivation domain represents 
22.5% of the total Index of 
Multiple Deprivation.

KPI Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Adults and children in Income Support 
Families

Adults and children in income-based 
Jobseeker’s Allowance families

Adults and children in income-based 
Employment and Support Allowance 
families

Adults and children in Pension Credit 
(Guarantee) families

Adults and children in Working Tax 
Credit and Child Tax Credit families, 
below 60% median income not already 
counted

Asylum seekers in England in receipt of 
subsistence support, accommodation 
support, or both

Adults and children in Universal Credit 
families when no adult is in ‘Working –
no requirements’ conditionality regime

In
co

m
e

To make a positive impact on improving Income the partnership should focus on:

• The ability of the alliance to sustain its current spending, tax and other policies in the medium to long term.

• The stability of the local economy, measuring key elements of the economy including the GVA per capita growth rate, inactivity shocks, economic shrinkage and SME growth.

• The efficiency with which inputs can be converted into outputs. Competition enhances productivity by forcing firms to innovate new ways to reduce cost and time constraints.

• The level of innovation and competition that occurs within the area by measuring the churn of businesses - the number of new start-ups entering and failing firms exiting an 

economy.

• The rates of unemployment, economic activity rates, job satisfaction and degree of part-time and non-permanent employment. 

Develop baseline and targets to support the Strategic Ambition of the South 
and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

P
age 91



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Economy & Growth Strategy 

8

Economy & Growth 
Strategy

This strategy will identify 
actions to support positive 
progress for local communities 
and local places targeted at the 
Income Deprivation Domain.

Economy & Growth Strategy KPI

A
C

TI
O

N
 1

A
C

TI
O

N
 2

A
C

TI
O

N
 3

A
C

TI
O

N
 4

A
C

TI
O

N
 5

Develop Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Joint Strategy

P
age 92



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Tourism & Destination Strategy 

9

Tourism & 
Destination 

Strategy

This strategy will identify 
actions to support positive 
progress for local communities 
and local places targeted at the 
Income Deprivation Domain.

Tourism & Destination Strategy KPI

A
C

TI
O

N
 1

A
C

TI
O

N
 2

A
C

TI
O

N
 3

A
C

TI
O

N
 4

A
C

TI
O

N
 5

Develop Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Joint Strategy

P
age 93



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Employment Deprivation 

10

Strategic Ambition

Employment

The measures identified on this 
slide support this deprivation 
domain and therefore provide a 
baseline to monitor progress.

A number of areas of focus have 
been identified where the 
S&ELCP can make a positive 
difference.

There are 7 domains of 
deprivation, which combine to 
create the Index of Multiple 
Deprivation, the Employment 
Deprivation domain represents 
22.5% of the total Index of 
Multiple Deprivation.

KPI Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Claimants of Jobseeker’s Allowance, 
aged 18-59/64

Claimants of Employment and Support 
Allowance aged 18-59/64

Claimants of Incapacity Benefit, aged 18-
59/64

Claimants of Severe Disablement 
Allowance, aged 18-59/64

Claimants of Carer’s Allowance, aged 18-
59/64

Claimants of Universal Credit in the 
‘Searching for work’ and ‘No work 
requirements’ conditionality groups

Em
p

lo
ym

e
n

t

To make a positive impact on improving Employment the partnership should focus on:

• How well businesses can use the internet for commerce, measuring the speed of internet and how widespread access to superfast internet is.

• The access of affordability of electricity and gas services.

• The quality of water infrastructure and the reliability and cost of water.

• The ease and efficiency for people and goods to travel within the UK. This measures the quality, diversity and penetration of road and rail transport within the area as well as 

access to key transport hubs. 

• How open the market is to new participants, versus protection of the incumbents.

• The legislative and policy driven factors that encourage entrepreneurialism, including property costs, compliance and local government restrictions.

• How dynamic and flexible the workplace is for both employer and employee.

Develop baseline and targets to support the Strategic Ambition of the 
South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

P
age 94



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Transport & Infrastructure Strategy 

11

Transport & 
Infrastructure 

Strategy

This strategy will identify 
actions to support positive 
progress for local communities 
and local places targeted at the 
Employment Deprivation 
Domain.

Transport & Infrastructure Strategy KPI

A
C

TI
O

N
 1

A
C

TI
O

N
 2

A
C

TI
O

N
 3

A
C

TI
O

N
 4

A
C

TI
O

N
 5

Develop Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Joint Strategy

P
age 95



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Education, Skills & Training Deprivation 

12

Strategic Ambition

Education, Skills & 
Training

The measures identified on this 
slide support this deprivation 
domain and therefore provide a 
baseline to monitor progress.

A number of areas of focus have 
been identified where the 
S&ELCP can make a positive 
difference.

There are 7 domains of 
deprivation, which combine to 
create the Index of Multiple 
Deprivation, the Education, 
Skills & Training Deprivation 
domain represents 13.5% of the 
total Index of Multiple 
Deprivation.

KPI Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Key Stage 2 attainment: scaled scores

Key Stage 4 attainment: average capped 
points score

Secondary school absence

Staying on in education post 16

Entry to higher education

Adults with no or low qualifications, 
aged 25-59/64

Adults who can not speak English or 
cannot speak English well, aged 25-59/64

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

, 
Sk

ill
s 

&
 T

ra
in

in
g To make a positive impact on improving Education, Skills & Training the partnership should focus on:

• How well education is attended and the educational outcomes of early childhood education. It supports the development of linguistic, cognitive, social and emotional skills.
• The provision and outcomes of primary education in the local authority area including core literacy and numeracy skills.
• The provision and outcomes of secondary education in the local authority area, including core literacy and numeracy skills. Attaining level 2 qualification in English and Maths 

are an important step in an individual’s educational journey opening up tertiary education opportunities as well as employment pathways.
• The extent to which students from a particular local authority area will go on to further education, either through apprenticeships or university.
• The level of skills in a local authority population, by measuring the number of adults with different levels of qualifications.

Develop baseline and targets to support the Strategic Ambition of 
the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

P
age 96



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Education & Skills Strategy 

13

Education & Skills 
Strategy

This strategy will identify 
actions to support positive 
progress for local communities 
and local places targeted at the 
Education, Skills & Training
Deprivation Domain.

Education & Skills Strategy KPI

A
C

TI
O

N
 1

A
C

TI
O

N
 2

A
C

TI
O

N
 3

A
C

TI
O

N
 4

A
C

TI
O

N
 5

Develop Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Joint Strategy

P
age 97



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Health Deprivation & Disability  

14

Strategic Ambition

Health & Disability

The measures identified on this 
slide support this deprivation 
domain and therefore provide a 
baseline to monitor progress.

A number of areas of focus have 
been identified where the 
S&ELCP can make a positive 
difference.

There are 7 domains of 
deprivation, which combine to 
create the Index of Multiple 
Deprivation, the Health 
Deprivation domain represents 
13.5% of the total Index of 
Multiple Deprivation.

KPI Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Years of potential life lost

Comparative illness and disability ratio

Acute morbidity 

Mood and anxiety disorders

H
e

al
th

 &
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

To make a positive impact on improving Health & Disability the partnership should focus on:

• The set of physiological characteristics and lifestyle patterns that increase the likelihood of developing disease, injury or illness, or of suffering from premature death.

• The extent to which a health system prevents diseases, illness and other medical complications from occurring, to save many children and adults from an early death.

• The ability of a health system to treat and cure diseases and illnesses once they are present in the population.

• The level and burden of mental illness on the living population. Mental health can have a significant impact on an individual’s wellbeing and ability to participate effectively in 

the labour market and in society more broadly.

• The level and burden of physical illness on the living population. Physical health can have a significant impact on an individual’s wellbeing and ability to participate effectively in 

the labour market and in society more broadly.

• The mortality rate of the areas population through different stages of life. 

Develop baseline and targets to support the Strategic Ambition of the 
South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

P
age 98



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Health & Well Being  Strategy 

15

Health & 
Well Being 

Strategy

This strategy will identify 
actions to support positive 
progress for local communities 
and local places targeted at the 
Health & Disability Deprivation 
Domain.

Health & Well Being Strategy KPI

A
C

TI
O

N
 1

A
C

TI
O

N
 2

A
C

TI
O

N
 3

A
C

TI
O

N
 4

A
C

TI
O

N
 5

Develop Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Joint Strategy

P
age 99



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Leisure & Culture Strategy 

16

Leisure & Culture 
Strategy

This strategy will identify 
actions to support positive 
progress for local communities 
and local places targeted at the 
Health & Disability Deprivation 
Domain.

Leisure & Culture Strategy KPI

A
C

TI
O

N
 1

A
C

TI
O

N
 2

A
C

TI
O

N
 3

A
C

TI
O

N
 4

A
C

TI
O

N
 5

Develop Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Joint Strategy

P
age 100



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP - Crime 

17

Strategic Ambition

Crime

The measures identified on this 
slide support this deprivation 
domain and therefore provide a 
baseline to monitor progress.

A number of areas of focus have 
been identified where the 
S&ELCP can make a positive 
difference.

There are 7 domains of 
deprivation, which combine to 
create the Index of Multiple 
Deprivation, the Crime 
Deprivation domain represents 
9.3% of the total Index of 
Multiple Deprivation.

KPI Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Recorded crime rates for:-

Violence

Burglary

Theft

Criminal Damage

C
ri

m
e

To make a positive impact on improving Crime the partnership should focus on:

• The level of violent crime based on the extent of knife crime, robbery, sexual offences, domestic abuse, homicides, modern slavery and forced marriages.
• The level and impact of property crime, based on criminal damage, theft, burglary and fraud.
• The level of disorderly behaviour, looking at public order offences, possession of weapons, firearms offences and perceived anti-social behaviour.
• The deliberate and targeted harm inflicted by non-state actors on a community, taking into account the number of incidents, injuries and also death that result. 

Develop baseline and targets to support the Strategic Ambition of the 
South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

P
age 101



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Community Strategy 

18

Community 
Strategy

This strategy will identify 
actions to support positive 
progress for local communities 
and local places targeted at the 
Crime Deprivation Domain.

Community Strategy KPI

A
C

TI
O

N
 1

A
C

TI
O

N
 2

A
C

TI
O

N
 3

A
C

TI
O

N
 4

A
C

TI
O

N
 5

Develop Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Joint Strategy

P
age 102



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Barriers to Housing & Services 

19

Strategic Ambition

Barriers to Housing 
& Services

The measures identified on this 
slide support this deprivation 
domain and therefore provide a 
baseline to monitor progress.

A number of areas of focus have 
been identified where the 
S&ELCP can make a positive 
difference.

There are 7 domains of 
deprivation, which combine to 
create the Index of Multiple 
Deprivation, the Barriers to 
Housing & Services Deprivation 
domain represents 9.3% of the 
total Index of Multiple 
Deprivation.

KPI Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Road distance to a:-

Post Office

Primary School

General store or supermarket

GP surgery

Household overcrowding

Homelessness

Housing affordability

B
ar

ri
e

rs
 t

o
 H

o
u

si
n

g 
&

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s To make a positive impact on Barriers to Housing & Services the partnership should focus on:

• The proportion of individuals with the minimum amount of resources that is necessary to survive  and attain wellbeing. This element should include the number of children in 
poverty.

• The quality of accommodation and the impact of the accommodation environment on the health of residents. Including measures of sleeping rough, homelessness, 
overcrowding, housing availability, hazardous housing and energy efficiency.

• The extent to which individuals are able to access the core services that citizens of society require such as schools, local shops and the GP.
• The extent to which individuals are able to interact with society through digit technology.
• The safety of the environment that individuals live and work in, measuring injuries and accidental deaths from workplace based activities. 

Develop baseline and targets to support the Strategic Ambition of the 
South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

P
age 103



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Housing Strategy 

20

Housing
Strategy

This strategy will identify 
actions to support positive 
progress for local communities 
and local places targeted at the 
Barriers to Housing & Services 
Deprivation Domain.

Housing Strategy KPI

A
C

TI
O

N
 1

A
C

TI
O

N
 2

A
C

TI
O

N
 3

A
C

TI
O

N
 4

A
C

TI
O

N
 5

Develop Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Joint Strategy

P
age 104



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Homelessness Strategy 

21

Homelessness
Strategy

This strategy will identify 
actions to support positive 
progress for local communities 
and local places targeted at the 
Barriers to Housing & Services 
Deprivation Domain.

Homelessness Strategy KPI

A
C

TI
O

N
 1

A
C

TI
O

N
 2

A
C

TI
O

N
 3

A
C

TI
O

N
 4

A
C

TI
O

N
 5

Develop Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Joint Strategy

P
age 105



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Assets & Property Strategy 

22

Assets & Property 
Strategy

This strategy will identify 
actions to support positive 
progress for local communities 
and local places targeted at the 
Barriers to Housing & Services 
Deprivation Domain.

Assets & Property Strategy KPI

A
C

TI
O

N
 1

A
C

TI
O

N
 2

A
C

TI
O

N
 3

A
C

TI
O

N
 4

A
C

TI
O

N
 5

Develop Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Joint Strategy

P
age 106



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Living Environment Deprivation 

23

Strategic Ambition

Living Environment

The measures identified on this 
slide support this deprivation 
domain and therefore provide a 
baseline to monitor progress.

A number of areas of focus have 
been identified where the 
S&ELCP can make a positive 
difference.

There are 7 domains of 
deprivation, which combine to 
create the Index of Multiple 
Deprivation, the Living 
Environment Deprivation 
domain represents 9.3% of the 
total Index of Multiple 
Deprivation.

KPI Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Houses without central heating

Housing in poor condition

Air quality

Road traffic accidents

Li
vi

n
g 

En
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
t

To make a positive impact on improving the Living Environment the partnership should focus on:

• The level of emissions of greenhouse gas and other gases from within the alliance councils. This captures the long-term effect of pressure on the atmosphere that the alliance 
councils will have.

• The level of pollution to which local communities are physically exposed and the effect this has on mortality.
• The quality of the outdoor spaces and forest.
• The quality of the area’s water and the risk of flooding.
• The quantity of waste collected and the level of recycling. 

Develop baseline and targets to support the Strategic Ambition of 
the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

P
age 107



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Climate Change Strategy 

24

Climate Change 
Strategy

This strategy will identify 
actions to support positive 
progress for local communities 
and local places targeted at the 
Living Environment Deprivation 
Domain.

Environment Strategy KPI

A
C

TI
O

N
 1

A
C

TI
O

N
 2

A
C

TI
O

N
 3

A
C

TI
O

N
 4

A
C

TI
O

N
 5

Develop Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Joint Strategy

P
age 108



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Environment Strategy 

25

Environment 
Strategy

This strategy will identify 
actions to support positive 
progress for local communities 
and local places targeted at the 
Living Environment Deprivation 
Domain.

Environment Strategy KPI

A
C

TI
O

N
 1

A
C

TI
O

N
 2

A
C

TI
O

N
 3

A
C

TI
O

N
 4

A
C

TI
O

N
 5

Develop Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Joint Strategy

P
age 109



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Energy Strategy 

26

Energy Strategy

This strategy will identify 
actions to support positive 
progress for local communities 
and local places targeted at the 
Living Environment Deprivation 
Domain.

Environment Strategy KPI

A
C

TI
O

N
 1

A
C

TI
O

N
 2

A
C

TI
O

N
 3

A
C

TI
O

N
 4

A
C

TI
O

N
 5

Develop Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the South and East 
Lincolnshire Councils Partnership Joint Strategy

P
age 110



DRAFT DOCUMENT

SECTION 2: CORPORATE PRIORITIES

27

P
age 111



DRAFT DOCUMENT

South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Corporate Priorities 

28

Corporate Priorities

This section of the performance 
report sets out the Corporate 
Priorities of the partnership, 
recognising the opportunity 
across the partnership and the 
sovereignty of the individual 
councils.

To achieve the Corporate 
Priorities will require working in 
partnership across the South 
and East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership where it is 
beneficial to all Councils to do 
so. 

• Markets
• Local Plan Development
• Community Safety 

Partnership
• Waste collection & 

recycling
• Public Protection

• Health & Safety
• HR & OD
• Legal
• ICT
• Internal & External 

Audit
• Risk Management
• Customer Insight & 

Services

• Planning
• Monitoring Officer
• Data Protection
• Democratic Services
• S151 Officer
• Finance Strategy
• Financial Management
• Treasury Management
• Sundry Debtors

Strategic Ambition

Corporate 
Priorities

Local Priorities

P
age 112



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP - Enablers and Opportunities from within the Partnership 

29

Corporate Priorities

To achieve the Corporate 
Priorities will require working in 
partnership across the South 
and East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership where it is 
beneficial to all Councils to do 
so. 

The Corporate Priorities will be 
targeted at improving the 
Quality of Life for all our local 
communities based on 7 areas 
of focus across the South and 
East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership. 

Quality 
of Life

Education

Housing

Health

EnvironmentCommunity

Employment

Crime

Develop Corporate Priorities and Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the 
South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

P
age 113



DRAFT DOCUMENT

South Holland Boston East Lindsey

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s

30

Corporate Priorities

The Corporate Priorities will be 
targeted at improving the 
Quality of Life for all our local 
communities based on 7 areas 
of focus across the South and 
East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership. 

S&ELCP - Education

South Holland Boston East Lindsey

A
ct

io
n

To work in partnership with key partners in the education 
sector, including Boston College and University of Lincoln, to 
ensure that both businesses and residents have access to the 
necessary skills to support economic growth and prosperity

Strong partnership working with Boston College and 
schools

Construction of Horncastle Hub in partnership with Boston College.
A

ct
io

n

New learning facility in Skegness.

A
ct

io
n New Leisure and Learning Centre, Mablethorpe

A
ct

io
n

Further Education opportunities for Louth

A
ct

io
n

Develop Corporate Priorities and Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the 
South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

P
age 114



DRAFT DOCUMENT

South Holland Boston East Lindsey

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s

• Be a landlord of choice for our council housing tenants. 

• Work to prevent and mitigate homelessness. 

• Enable effective planning and delivery of housing 
solutions to meet local needs and aspirations to ensure 
that our residents have access to a range of housing 
options in the district. 

• Deliver new homes for our residents and provide a 
dividend to Council through our Welland Homes 
housing company. Use our Community interest 
Company South Holland Homes to protect community 
assets. Maintain our commitment to Council Housing 
by building new council homes to replace those that 
have been lost. 

• Work to support elderly people to live independently 
and in their own home, including working with partners 
to support the delivery of a new ‘extra care’ housing 
development in the district. Ensure that our residents 
are enabled to live in high quality housing no matter 
the tenure.

• Invest and support growth to meet local housing needs by 
co-funding affordable housing delivery.

• We want to develop and help to deliver an ambitious Housing 
Strategy that will enable and facilitate the delivery of a range of 
mixed tenure homes across the district including through 
collaboration with other partners.  

• A supply of well designed, safe and suitable homes in the right place 
whether it be for families, older people or those with more individual 
needs; in order to contribute to overall community wellbeing and 
personal sense of place. 

• Deliver high quality housing services which are targeted to help our 
most vulnerable residents and ensure that the Council is there to 
support and help when it is needed through an improved support 
pathway that is easy for people to use and focus on preventing 
people from becoming homeless. 

31

Corporate Priorities

The Corporate Priorities will be 
targeted at improving the 
Quality of Life for all our local 
communities based on 7 areas 
of focus across the South and 
East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership. 

S&ELCP - Housing

South Holland Boston East Lindsey

A
ct

io
n

To work to prevent and mitigate homelessness, including 
continuing to work with partners across Lincolnshire to 
deliver countywide solutions to rough sleeping.

Ambition to construct new houses. Invest East Lindsey developing a housing construction programme.

A
ct

io
n

To enable effective planning and delivery of housing 
solutions to meet local needs and aspirations to ensure 
that our residents have access to a range of housing 
options in the district.

A
ct

io
n To continue to deliver new homes through the HRA and 

Welland Homes

Develop Corporate Priorities and Actions to support the 
Strategic Ambition of the South and East Lincolnshire 

Councils Partnership

P
age 115



DRAFT DOCUMENT

South Holland Boston East Lindsey

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s

• Lead, enable and embed the provision of a range of improved local 
community, cultural and art facilities that support the enhanced 
wellbeing of South Holland’s communities. 

• Lead the provision of contracted leisure facilities and explore options 
for future delivery to enhance the wellbeing of South Holland’s 
communities.

• Ensure that our public protection services continue to enable our 
communities to remain healthy and safe through our regulatory 
activities. 

• Target leisure facilities to provide a programme of activities to tackle 
obesity and inactivity in South Holland. 

• Lead and support activities, partnerships and recommend 
interventions to help address key local health and wellbeing issues 
such as mental health, housing health and care and increasing physical 
activity. Support the delivery and development of Early Help 
collaborative working with partners and use shared resources earlier 
to prevent vulnerable people reaching to crisis point. Proactively 
influence the Lincolnshire CCG Neighbourhood Team to ensure the 
best health outcomes for South Holland. Ensure our residents are 
given advice to help maximise their income and manage their debts. 

• Make Boston a healthy and safe place 
to work.

• We want to work with our partners to improve the health of East Lindsey 
residents, particularly through our role in preventing people from 
developing poor health in the first place, or helping people to live better if 
they are not fully fit. We want to encourage healthy lifestyles and provide 
support where it is needed.

• Continued good health means people will contribute more to the 
economy, be active in their communities and reduce the need for social 
and health care services. 

32

Corporate Priorities

The Corporate Priorities will be 
targeted at improving the 
Quality of Life for all our local 
communities based on 7 areas 
of focus across the South and 
East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership. 

S&ELCP - Health

South Holland Boston East Lindsey

A
ct

io
n

To lead and support activities, partnerships and recommend interventions 
to help address key local health and wellbeing issues such as mental 
health, housing health and care and increasing physical activity.

Maintaining services at the Pilgrim 
Hospital.

Aging Better Programme

A
ct

io
n

To target leisure facilities to provide a programme of activities to tackle 
obesity and inactivity in South Holland

Continue to provide and improve access 
to leisure provision to support active 
communities.

Magna Vitae Leisure and Culture Trust to enable a healthy and active 
community.

Develop Corporate Priorities and Actions to 
support the Strategic Ambition of the South and 

East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

P
age 116



DRAFT DOCUMENT

South Holland Boston East Lindsey

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s

• Work together with partners, businesses and local 
communities to re-establish the Pride in South Holland 
programme to improve the quality of public spaces to be 
cleaner, greener and safer. 

• Create further outdoor spaces and new woodlands to 
enhance the natural environment and to encourage our 
communities to have active lifestyles. 

• Continue to engage with all Internal drainage boards in 
South Holland to ensure that the district is prevented 
from flooding and its importance to national food 
production is maintained. Support Parishes to deliver 
capital works and improvements through the new 
community reserve loan scheme. 

• The Council declared a climate change emergency in 
January 2020, coming to reduce the Council’s carbon 
footprint and become net zero carbon in advance of the 
timetable declared by UK Parliament. 

• The Borough Council will play its role to ensure we 
begin to reverse the impact on climate change. We will 
encourage others to follow our example and be more 
environmentally aware.

• The Council should look to reducing its own carbon emissions, but 
also help to play a role in working with other organisations and the 
wider community to do everything we can to contribute at a local 
level. We want to play a significant role in helping to better manage 
the waste we collect, and increase the amount that can be recycled 
or used to generate energy; but with a longer term focus on playing a 
role in reducing the amount of waste coming into the system in the 
first place. 

• To prioritise resources to enable us to adapt to a changing climate, 
both as an organisation and on behalf of the district; in order that 
the district continues to develop and grow economically despite the 
challenge of being a coastal district. To be a strong partner in 
protecting our natural environment for residents and visitors. 

33

Corporate Priorities

The Corporate Priorities will be 
targeted at improving the 
Quality of Life for all our local 
communities based on 7 areas 
of focus across the South and 
East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership. 

S&ELCP - Environment

South Holland Boston East Lindsey

A
ct

io
n

To create further outdoor spaces and new woodlands to 
enhance the natural environment

Carbon Reduction Programme for the Council including 
Climate Change Assembly targeting key sectors.

Carbon Reduction Programme for the Council. 

A
ct

io
n

To support our local industries with the transition to low 
carbon, especially in agri-foods sectors

Ensure the successful bedding in of the paper and card 
recycling service in Boston and its success thereafter.  

Climate Change Assembly targeting key sectors.

A
ct

io
n Working with the Environment Agency on improved coastal defences.

Develop Corporate Priorities and Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the 
South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

P
age 117



DRAFT DOCUMENT

South Holland Boston East Lindsey

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s

• Protect the community and environment Support Spalding and 
Holbeach to be attractive places that people want to visit, live 
and work while supporting all other towns and villages in the 
district to meet the needs of their communities. 

• Support Parishes to deliver capital works and improvements 
through the new community reserve loan scheme.

• Ensure that our services are digitally enabled and efficient to 
meet the expectations of our changing communities. Ensure 
that our staff have the skills needed to drive the organisation 
forward and meeting the changing expectations of our 
residents. 

• Help shape, influence and respond to emerging national policy 
to ensure that we maximise the opportunity for South Holland.

• Keep residents, businesses, and partners informed about 
council services and latest opportunities through clear and 
effective communications.  

• There is continued pressure on funding to Local 
Government, whilst at the same time the demand 
is increasing for many of the services we deliver. 

• Making use of the latest technology will increase 
the efficiency of our services so we can deliver 
more for our communities. 

• There is also the opportunity to be more creative 
in the ways we generate income to fund our core 
services.

• We want to move the Council as far as we can towards being 
independent of government funding by investing in income 
generating projects and activities in order to protect and grow our 
core services.

• We want to make full use of the latest technologies to both increase 
the efficiency of service provision so we can deliver more, as well as 
take full advantage of the opportunities for using technology to meet 
the needs of people in a large rural district.

34

Corporate Priorities

The Corporate Priorities will be 
targeted at improving the 
Quality of Life for all our local 
communities based on 7 areas 
of focus across the South and 
East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership. 

S&ELCP - Community

South Holland Boston East Lindsey

A
ct

io
n

To lead the provision of contracted leisure facilities and explore 
options for future delivery to enhance the wellbeing of South 
Holland’s communities 

Empowering Healthier Communities Programme –
funded by MHCLG.

Towns’ Fund – Mablethorpe and Skegness

A
ct

io
n To lead, enable and embed the provision of a range of improved 

local community, cultural and art facilities that support the 
enhanced wellbeing of South Holland’s communities

Towns’ Fund – Boston

A
ct

io
n Deliver an improvement plan for Spalding and Holbeach town 

centres, supporting high street economy and the town centres as a 
community hub

Develop Corporate Priorities and Actions to support the 
Strategic Ambition of the South and East Lincolnshire 

Councils Partnership

P
age 118



DRAFT DOCUMENT

South Holland Boston East Lindsey

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s

• Proactively work with partners to identify and optimise 
funding opportunities that will draw resources into the 
district to support our plans for substantial and continued 
growth.  Work in partnership across the public and 
private sector to retain and build on the key business 
sector strengths within South Holland, whilst also 
working proactively to attract new inward investment 
that will bring further prosperity to our district. 

• Continue to deliver a clear “Open for Business” approach 
across all Council services that promotes and supports 
business growth Continue to deliver a full range of 
services and initiatives that support our businesses, 
including our Grants4Growth programme. Stimulate 
further growth, productivity and prosperity in the food 
sector through the delivery of a Food Enterprise Zone in 
Holbeach.

• Deliver substantial and continued growth as proposed 
through our Local Plan, in conjunction with our key 
partners

• Work with our key partners to ensure that the 
infrastructure required to support our community to 
grow and flourish, including key roads, rail, broadband 
and telecommunications, are planned for and delivered. 

• As a regional sub-centre of the county, we want to grow 
Boston’s economy to ensure it remains a thriving town 
where people choose to live, work and visit. In doing so 
it is important we under stand the needs of our 
communities and achieve growth in a way that is 
inclusive. 

• Town centres have over time adapted to wider changes in society, 
evolution of working practices and technological advances. Positive 
and proactive place leadership through community supported 
initiatives is a key part of ensuring buy-in to changing places. We 
therefore want to identify and empower those who have an interest 
in their town to collaboratively take forward initiatives that help to 
reposition, reinvent, rebrand and restructure each town centre

• within the district. We also know that town centres can contribute to 
meeting social needs, not just through residential provision but also 
through health and wellness activities, education facilities and 
providing opportunity for increased physical activity and social 
interaction promoting healthy lifestyles; so we will ensure that there 
is integration with our other strategic aims.

• We want to work with businesses and partners to increase skill levels 
which will help drive up average wage levels and increase 
participation in the labour market.

• Providing confidence to businesses that East Lindsey is an area of 
economic growth into the future is vitally important and requires a 
strategic approach to a range of issues.

• Help businesses to access all the support that is available to them, 
especially in the current changing environment that could result in 
both challenges and opportunities - in the short term this could be 
about our exit from the European Union and changes to legislation; 
in the medium term it could be the impact of a changing climate and 
green technologies. 

35

Corporate Priorities

The Corporate Priorities will be 
targeted at improving the 
Quality of Life for all our local 
communities based on 7 areas 
of focus across the South and 
East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership. 

S&ELCP - Employment

Develop Corporate Priorities and Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the 
South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

P
age 119



DRAFT DOCUMENT 36

Corporate Priorities

The Corporate Priorities will be 
targeted at improving the 
Quality of Life for all our local 
communities based on 7 areas 
of focus across the South and 
East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership. 

S&ELCP - Employment

South Holland Boston East Lindsey

A
ct

io
n

Growing South Holland’s agri-food cluster and horticulture 
sector, and creating higher value jobs through projects such 
as the FEZ

Attracting investment/new businesses to the Borough. Attracting investment/new businesses in the Borough

A
ct

io
n Enabling housing growth as a driver of local employment. Strong focus on working with the Port of Boston. Extending the visitor economy/season.

A
ct

io
n

Deliver a clear “Open for Business” approach across all 
Council services that promotes and supports business growth 
and inward investment

A
ct

io
n

Continue to deliver a full range of services and initiatives that 
support our businesses, including our Grants4Growth 
programme

Develop Corporate Priorities and Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the 
South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

P
age 120



DRAFT DOCUMENT

South Holland Boston East Lindsey

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s

• Work with our partners such as Lincolnshire Community 
Safety Partnership and Parish Councils to reduce and 
prevent crime and anti-social behaviour

• Ensure that national policies relating to modern slavery 
and the safeguarding of vulnerable children and adults 
are embedded effectively throughout all aspects of our 
services. 

37

Corporate Priorities

The Corporate Priorities will be 
targeted at improving the 
Quality of Life for all our local 
communities based on 7 areas 
of focus across the South and 
East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership. 

S&ELCP - Crime

South Holland Boston East Lindsey

A
ct

io
n

CCTV Partnership CCTV Partnership CCTV Partnership with BBC and Town Councils.

Develop Corporate Priorities and Actions to support the Strategic Ambition of the 
South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership

P
age 121



DRAFT DOCUMENT

SECTION 3: LOCAL PRIORITIES

38

P
age 122



DRAFT DOCUMENT

South and East Lincolnshire Council Partnership – Local Priorities 

39

Local Priorities

This section of the performance 
report sets out Local Priorities 
for each individual council 
which are supported by the 
partnership. 

Each of the identified Portfolio 
and supporting Directorates will 
need to prioritise resources to 
ensure the delivery of outcomes 
for each individual sovereign 
council. 

The co-ordination of these 
outcomes will provide an 
efficient and effective model of 
delivery and improvement for 
all Councils within the South 
and East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership.

• Markets
• Local Plan Development
• Community Safety 

Partnership
• Waste collection & 

recycling
• Public Protection

• Health & Safety
• HR & OD
• Legal
• ICT
• Internal & External 

Audit
• Risk Management
• Customer Insight & 

Services

• Planning
• Monitoring Officer
• Data Protection
• Democratic Services
• S151 Officer
• Finance Strategy
• Financial Management
• Treasury Management
• Sundry Debtors

Strategic Ambition

Corporate 
Priorities

Local Priorities

P
age 123



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Communities Portfolio – Wellbeing and Community Leadership Directorate (1) 

40

Communities
The Wellbeing and Community 
Leadership Directorate includes:

• Inequalities & Deprivation
• Community Voluntary 

Support
• Ageing Better
• Health Liaison, Health 

Partnerships, Wellbeing, 
Health Promotion 

• Housing Strategy 
• Homelessness
• Disabled Facilities Grants
• Housing Standards
• Housing Options
• Community Cohesion
• Safeguarding
• Community Safety, Anti-

Social Behaviour, CCTV
• Lottery and 
• Customer pathways and 

their development. 

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Housing Enforcement requests 
responded to within timeframe (10 
Days)

Number of properties improved 
through Council intervention

Number of long term empty 
properties brought back into use 
through council support and 
intervention

Participation at leisure centres

% of homelessness cases that were 
opened at homelessness prevention 
stage that resulted in the customer 
not becoming homeless

Cases prevented from 
Homelessness

Number of families with children 
placed into B&B for more than 6 
weeks

Community Led Social Housing Units 
completed

Time taken to process DFG (Disabled 
Facilities Grant) applications

P
age 124



DRAFT DOCUMENT

Communities
The Wellbeing and Community 
Leadership Directorate includes:

• Inequalities & Deprivation
• Community Voluntary 

Support
• Ageing Better
• Health Liaison, Health 

Partnerships, Wellbeing, 
Health Promotion 

• Housing Strategy 
• Homelessness
• Disabled Facilities Grants
• Housing Standards
• Housing Options
• Community Cohesion
• Safeguarding
• Community Safety, Anti-

Social Behaviour, CCTV
• Lottery and 
• Customer pathways and 

their development. 

S&ELCP – Communities Portfolio – Wellbeing and Community Leadership Directorate (2) 

41

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Wellbeing Lincs contractual –
Service users supported to achieve 
an overall improvement in self-
reported outcomes

Wellbeing Lincs contractual –
Overall improvement in all outcome 
scores across all service users 
leaving the service

Wellbeing Lincs contractual - % of 
service users who go on to receive 
long term support from adult care.

Community cohesion performance 
measure

CCTV performance measure

Antisocial behaviour measure

% of customer services calls 
answered

Number of calls received

Customer satisfaction

Average wait time (seconds) 
(calculated from after options have 
been selected)
Average Call Duration (Once 
connected to customer contact 
agent)

P
age 125



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Communities Portfolio – Regulatory Directorate 

42

Communities

The Regulatory Directorate 
includes:

• Building Control
• Land Charges
• Environmental Health 

Services
• Public Protection
• Food Safety
• Licensing
• Air Pollution
• Carbon Reduction/Green 

Agenda
• Safety Advisory Group
• Infectious Diseases
• Pest Control
• Power Stations
• Emergency Planning
• Dog Wardens and 
• Corporate Health & Safety.

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Land Charges - Average number of 
days taken to process Local 
Authority searches

Food Safety – percentage of food 
businesses rated ‘generally 
satisfactory’ or above

% CO2E reduction from Local 
Authority operations

Measures are under development within service areas around volume, turnaround times, speed of response to customer requests and income. Also, market share for building control and completion 
of food safety inspection plans, including unrated premises. These measures will be reported to Portfolio Holders and South Holland’s Performance Monitoring Panel.

There is an air pollution measure which is specific to Boston and is reported as part of the Air Quality Plan.

A Service Level Agreement is being developed for Emergency Planning which will include measures for reporting. Similarly, discussions will follow with PSPS around measures for corporate health and 
safety.

Potentially environmental enforcement (TBC)

P
age 126



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Communities Portfolio – Leisure and Culture Directorate 

43

Communities

The Leisure and Culture 
Directorate includes:

• Leisure & Community 
Centres

• Sports & Play Development
• Leisure Promotion
• Arts & Culture
• Museums, Events
• Markets and 
• Magna Vitae.

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Visitor numbers / number of 
tickets sold, by venue

Number of swims

Number of swimming lessons

Number of gym members

Customer satisfaction, by venue / 
service area

Market stall occupancy rate 

Measures are under development within service areas around volumetrics, income/commercialisation, satisfaction/complaints/feedback and outcome measures. These measures will be reported to 
Portfolio Holders and South Holland’s Performance Monitoring Panel.

A Service Level Agreement is being developed for Magna Vitae which will include measures for reporting such as types of users, customer experience, activity patterns, benefits and impacts.

Similarly, discussions will follow with Transported around outcome measures.

P
age 127



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Communities Portfolio – Neighbourhoods Directorate (1) 

44

Communities

The Neighbourhood Directorate 
includes:

• Bus Stations
• Play Areas
• Waste Collection
• Garden Waste
• Recycling
• Street Cleaning
• Fly Tipping
• Arboriculture
• Public Toilets
• Grounds Maintenance
• Riversides
• Fleet Maintenance
• Commercial Waste
• Town and Parish Liaison.

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Percentage of household waste 
collected for recycling and 
composting (%)

% of recycling collected that is 
contaminated and unable to be 
recycled

Number of missed waste collections

% of successful collections within the 
district

% of fly-tips collected within 10 
working days (hazardous and 
standard) of being reported

% of fly-tips collected within 5 
working days of being reported

Number of working days to deal with 
fly tipping

Number of fly tips

Fly tips breakdown (monthly)

% of Danfo repairs carried out within 
24 hours (EL public toilets)

Public Toilets performance measure 
e.g. satisfaction

Bus Station performance measure

Play Area performance measure

P
age 128



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Communities Portfolio – Neighbourhoods Directorate (2) 

45

Communities

The Neighbourhood Directorate 
includes:

• Bus Stations
• Play Areas
• Waste Collection
• Garden Waste
• Recycling
• Street Cleaning
• Fly Tipping
• Arboriculture
• Public Toilets
• Grounds Maintenance
• Riversides
• Fleet Maintenance
• Commercial Waste
• Town and Parish Liaison.

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Street Cleaning performance 
measures e.g. cleanliness and 
satisfaction

Arboriculture performance measure

Grounds Maintenance measure

Fleet Maintenance performance 
measures e.g. vehicle downtime

Commercial Waste performance 
measure e.g. income or number of 
customers compared to previous 
year

P
age 129



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Corporate Development Portfolio – Corporate Directorate (1) 

46

Corporate 
Development

The Corporate Directorate 
includes:

• PSPS - ICT & Digital and HR
• Corporate Policy
• Corporate Improvement & 

Transformation
• Corporate Performance
• Programme Management
• Organisational Development
• Compliance
• Commercialisation of 

services
• Communications
• Structural Reform and 
• PA Teams.

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Percentage of workforce who said 
‘Yes’ when asked if they felt valued 
at work?

% of the workforce who said ‘yes’ 
they feel there are opportunities in 
the Partnership to learn and 
develop their skills and expertise

% of the workforce who said ‘yes’ 
they feel the Partnership recognises 
and supports positive mental health 
in the workplace

% of the workforce who feel 
informed about the Partnership and 
what decisions it is making

Percentage of workforce who said 
‘Yes’ when asked if they felt valued 
at work?

Staff Turnover (%)

Working days lost to sickness per FTE 
(per month)

Number of working days lost to 
sickness 

P
age 130



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Corporate Development Portfolio – Corporate Directorate (2) 

47

Corporate 
Development

The Corporate Directorate 
includes:

• PSPS - ICT & Digital and HR
• Corporate Policy
• Corporate Improvement & 

Transformation
• Corporate Performance
• Programme Management
• Organisational Development
• Compliance
• Commercialisation of 

services
• Communications
• Structural Reform and 
• PA Teams.

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Number of social media 
engagements/impressions

Number of unique website visitors -
refers to the number of distinct 
individuals requesting pages from 
the website during a given period, 
regardless of how often they visit.

% of ICT Calls resolved within SLA 

ICT Strategy measures

% of council policies  up to date

P
age 131



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Corporate Development Portfolio – HRA Directorate 

48

Corporate 
Development

The HRA Directorate includes:

• Careline & Supported 
Housing

• Housing Policy
• Housing Landlord
• Social Housing Provider 

Liaison
• Housing Revenue Accounts
• Sheltered Housing and
• Housing Services.

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Housing re-let void time (total avg. 
Key to Key)

Number of void days

Decent Homes Standard measures

Percentage of rent received against 
amount due

Number of evictions

Properties sold under the Right to 
Buy (RTB)

Repairs completed on time

P
age 132



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Corporate Development Portfolio – Finance Directorate 

49

Corporate 
Development

The Finance Directorate 
includes:

• Finance Strategy
• Financial Management
• PSPS – Council Tax & 

Business Rates
• PSPS – Revenues & Benefits
• Anti-Fraud
• PSPS – Finance
• PSPS - Treasury Management
• Internal and External Audit
• Insurance
• Grants
• Housing Revenue Account
• General Fund
• Precepts
• Budget
• Procurement
• Collection Fund and 
• Payroll.

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Business rate collection rate (%) 
(Cumulative)
Council tax collection rate (%) 
(Cumulative)

Time to process new Council Tax 
Support and Housing Benefit claims 
(days)

Time to process Council Tax 
Support and Housing Benefit 
change events (days)

% of calls answered – Revenues

% of calls answered – Benefits

Customer Satisfaction

Housing Benefit Local Authority 
error rate

Fraud measure

Treasury Management measure

% of audit plans completed

Insurance measure

Procurement measure

P
age 133



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Corporate Development Portfolio – Governance Directorate 

50

Corporate 
Development

The Governance Directorate 
includes:

• Risk Management
• Democratic Services
• Legal Services
• Data Protection
• Complaints
• Governance General
• Deputy Monitoring Officers
• Elections
• Freedom of Information
• Investigations and Corporate 

Support

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

% of information requests 
responded to within statutory 
timescales

% of Subject Rights Requests 
responded to within statutory 
timescales

% of corporate complaints 
responded to within agreed 
timescales

Number of FOI received

Number of complaints responded to

% of committee agendas sent out 
within deadline

Number of public questions asked at 
Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny

Number of people registered to vote

P
age 134



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Growth Portfolio – Economic Growth Directorate 

51

Growth

The Economic Growth 
Directorate includes:

• Inward Investment
• Enterprise Zones
• GLLEP
• Visitor Economy/Tourism
• High Street Regeneration
• Business Improvement 

District (BID)
• Economic Development
• Town Deal and Levelling Up 

funding
• Towns Promotion
• Grant Funding
• Town Centre Management
• Skills and Education and
• Education Liaison.

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Business grants awarded as a % of 
funding received for each grant 
scheme

Vital and Viable action plan 
delivery - % of actions delivered 
against those due.

Percentage of all decisions that 
were subject to extensions of time 
in period

% of people on Universal Credit

Grants4growth delivery

Business Centre occupation, Louth -
% of total gross internal area 
occupied

Business Centre occupation, 
Mablethorpe - % of total gross 
internal area occupied

LEP measures

Towns Fund measures

P
age 135



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Growth Portfolio – Planning Directorate 

52

Growth

The Planning Directorate 
includes:

• Strategic Planning Policy
• Local Plan/s 
• Planning Development & 

Management
• Planning Enforcement
• Internal Drainage Boards
• Coastal Defences
• Flood Management
• Historic Environment and 
• Conservation/Heritage.

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Percentage of major planning 
applications determined within 
13/16 weeks

Percentage of minor planning 
applications determined within 8 
weeks

Percentage of other planning 
applications determined within 8 
weeks

% of major planning appeals 
allowed within the last 2 years 
(rolling period) against number of 
applications determined

% of minor & other planning 
appeals allowed within the last 2 
years (rolling period) against 
number of applications determined

% of minor & other planning 
applications validated within 5 
working days against total received

% of major planning applications 
validated within 10 working days 
against total received

Planning Enforcement measure

Conservation measure

P
age 136



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Programme Delivery Portfolio – Strategic Projects Directorate  

53

Programme 
Delivery

The Strategic Projects 
Directorate includes:

• Strategic Property 
Development

• Towns Fund Project Delivery
• Project Delivery and 
• Capital Programme.

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

% of key projects completed within 
10% of original project timeline

% of key projects completed within 
10% of original project costs

Towns Fund measures

Capital Programme measures

P
age 137



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Programme Delivery Portfolio – General Fund Assets Directorate  

54

Programme 
Delivery

The General Fund Assets 
Directorate includes:

• Business Centres
• Commercial Units
• Car Parking & Enforcement
• Commercial Rents
• Asset Management (excl. 

Housing)
• Property Facilities
• Strategic Property 

Maintenance
• Caretaking
• Repairs & Maintenance
• Garages
• Non-Strategic Property 

Projects
• Cemeteries & Crematoriums
• Caravan Parks/Ops Sales and
• Invest East Lindsey.

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Percentage of car parking income 
received against agreed budget

Percentage of commercial rent 
received against agreed budget

% of commercial rent collected 
against that due

Caretaking measure

Repairs and Maintenance measure

Garages measure

Cemeteries/Crematorium measure

Percentage of Kingfisher Caravan 
Park income received against 
agreed budget

% of available pitches occupied on 
Kingfisher Caravan Park

Invest East Lindsey measure

P
age 138



DRAFT DOCUMENT

S&ELCP – Programme Delivery Portfolio – Growth and Strategic Projects Directorate  

55

Programme 
Delivery

The Growth and Strategic 
Projects Directorate includes:

• Housing Delivery
• Post Local Plan Adoption 

Delivery
• Housing Companies
• House Building
• Inward Investment and 

Business Engagement
• Major Site Delivery
• Infrastructure Delivery
• Homes England Lead
• Enterprise Zones
• Spalding Western Relief 

Road, and
• GLLEP

KPI Quartile Target South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

Housing delivery measure

Inward investment measure

Programme delivery measures

P
age 139



DRAFT DOCUMENT 56

P
age 140



SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP

APPENDIX C - FINANCIAL OPPORTUNITIES 
Final Version 1.0

1

P
age 141



2

Partnership
Financial Challenge

S&ELCP – the partnership faces 
a challenging financial position 
looking forward, with a high 
level of uncertainty. 

Announcements are expected 
regarding the settlement in 
coming weeks whilst running 
parallel to the budget setting 
process currently underway.

Based on previous calculations 
based on certain assumptions 
South Holland DC faces a 
financial gap over the MTFS 
period of up to £2.187m, 
Boston Borough Council up to 
£0.862m and East Lindsey 
District Council  up to £1.242m. 

The settlement could delay the 
impact of these financial 
challenges but these budget 
gaps will need to be addressed 
over the coming years.

2.081
2.187

2.035

0.000

0.862

0.490

0.484

0.000

1.172
1.242

0.613

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

£
m

 p
er

 a
n

n
u

m

Financial Year

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022/26

South Holland DC Boston BC East Lindsey DC

South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Financial Opportunities

P
age 142



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Financial Opportunity

3

Partnership
Budget Cycle

The partnership budgetary 
cycles have been aligned to 
ensure that the development 
of the financial opportunity 
and decisions associated with 
the identified financial 
opportunity are aligned 
across the partnership.

November -
Preparation 

and Challenge

December -
Settlement   
and Reports

January  –
Consultation 
and Scrutiny

February –

Recommend to 
Cabinet

March -
Council 

Ratification

June/July –

Budget

Monitoring

September -

Budget 
Assumptions

BUDGET 

CYCLE

P
age 143



4

Partnership 
Financial Baseline 

• Understanding the 
baseline financial challenge 
of each council and the 
new strategic partnership 
will help to shape the 
potential focus and 
priorities of the 
partnership.

• Understanding the 
underlying financial 
pressures of each council 
will help target 
opportunities, 
transformation and 
performance management 
to best address these 
issues to help contribute to 
the budgetary gap faced 
across the new strategic 
partnership. 

Baseline – MFTS projected budget gaps 2022-25

Budget Pressures

MTFS – Budget Gap 2022/23
£000’s

2023/24
£000’s

2024/25
£000’s

South Holland DC 2.081 2.187 2.035

Boston BC 0.862 0.490 0.484

East Lindsey DC 1.172 1.242 0.613

Total 4.115 3.919 3.132

Financial Year 2022/23
£000’s

2023/24
£000’s

2024/25
£000’s

South Holland DC
• Pay Award Inflation 2%
• Pension Strain
• Drainage Board Levies
• Loss of Government Funding

0.150
0.074
0.105
0.721

0.152
0.076
0.109
1.205

0.154
0.078
0.113
1.256

Boston BC 
• Pay Award Inflation 1%
• Pension Strain
• Drainage Board Levies
• Loss of Government Funding

0.100
0.075
0.084
1.258

0.101
0.083
0.087
1.547

0.103
0.093
0.091
1.665

East Lindsey DC
• Pay Award Inflation 2%
• Pension Strain
• Drainage Board Levies
• Loss of Government Funding

0.280
0.099
0.152
2.367

0.285
0.099
0.158
2.773

0.281
0.099
0.164
2.773

South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Financial Opportunities

P
age 144



South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership – Financial Opportunities

5

Business Case 
Financial 

Opportunity

The Business Case identified 
the following areas of 
financial opportunity across 
the partnership.

These Phases are indicative 
of the potential timing that 
might be adopted. This can 
flex according to service need 
and external factors – e.g. 
national policy changes as 
required.

Phase 1 

Senior Management Team 

Land Charges

Emergency Planning

South Holland Centre

Arts & Culture

Markets

Vehicle Maintenance

ICT & ICT PSPS

Centralised & Business Support

Payroll

Communications

Customer Services & Customer Services 
PSPS

Finance & Finance PSPS

Internal Audit

Treasury Management

Insurance

Revenues & Benefits

Property & Assets

Facilities Management

Contracts & Procurement

Phase 2

CCTV – Community Resilience

Building Control

Public Protection & Regulatory Services

Leisure

Ayscoughfee Hall

HR&OD & HR&OD PSPS

Performance

Legal

Democratic Services

Risk Management

Economic Development

Town Centre Management

Planning 

Planning Policy

Commercial Waste

Phase 3

Head of Service

Housing – General Fund

Community Fund & Partnership

Environmental Management

Communities

Climate Change

Bus Station

Waste Collection

Street Scene Management

Street Cleansing

Grounds Maintenance

Garden Waste

South Holland Maintenance

Transport

Waste Depot

Management Support

Transformation

Elections and Canvass

Delivery Unit

Health & Safety

Commercial & Operations Management

Car Parking

Housing Delivery

P
age 145



6

P
age 146



Document is Restricted

Page 147

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A. MINUTES
	EXEMPT MINUTE 27.9.21 - Honorary Freedom

	1 AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
	2 JOINT BBC/ELDC SCRUTINY OF THE STRATEGIC ALLIANCE
	Appendix A - Scrutiny Report - Joint BBC-ELDC Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance
	Appendix B - Scoping Document
	Appendix C - Questions for witnesses
	Appendix D - Councillor Questionnaire Results
	Appendix E - Meeting Notes

	3 BOSTON CITY STATUS APPLICATION
	4 SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP
	Appendix A - South and East Lincolnshire Council Partnership - Work Programme
	Appendix B - South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership - Performance Framework
	Appendix C - South and East Lincolnshire Council Partnership -  Financial Opportunites
	EXEMPT - APPENDIX D - Employment Terms and Conditions (including Pay) for the Integrated Shared Senior Management Team


